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Independent auditor ’s report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
of Rosneft Oil Company

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rosneft Oil Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Company”), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the yea r then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the  Auditor ’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are i ndependent
of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants ’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Russian Federation, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtaine d is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current

period. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is

provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor 's responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these

matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures perf ormed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant and equipment of Refining and

We considered this matter to be one of most
significance in our audit due to the materiality of
property, plant and equipment impairment amount
for Refining and distribution segment ( “R&D’) to the
consolidated financial statements, th e high level of
subjectivity in assumptions underlying the
impairment analysis and the significant judgements
and estimates made by management. In addition,
the combination of the volatility in oil prices and the
Russian rouble exchange rate, regulatory ch anges
and restrictions as well as change in inflation and
cost of debt in recent years, points to the instability
of the economic conditions that could thus result in
an impairment of such assets of the Company.

Information on property, plant and equipment and
the impairment tests performed is disclosed in
Notes 13 and 23 to the consolidated financial

statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

distribution segment

We have compared the current value -in-use models
for cash generating units (“CGUSs") which include
property, plant and equipment of “R&D " segment,
and their key assumptions with those used in prior
years. We compared the key assumptions used in the
models to the published macroeconomic indicators
and marker forecasts. In the assessment of pricing
assumptions used in the models, we have considered
the recent government initiatives with respect to
taxation and pricing on the domestic petroleum
products market.

We tested the mathematical accuracy of

the impairment models and analyzed the sensitivity
of value-in-use to the changes in the key
assumptions.

We have also analyzed the composition of “ R&D'
CGUs for the purpose of impairment review and the
impairment indicators analysis thereof. For where
the indicators were present, we have tested, as
discussed above, the calculation of recoverable
amounts for the CGUs with the highest risk of
impairment.

We involved our business valuation specialists in the
analysis of management’s testing of impairment and
calculation of recoverable amounts of property,
plant and equipment .

We have also analyzed the disclosure of the
information with respect to property, plant and
equipment impairment of “R&D’ segment in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Investments in associates and joint ventures and other non

We considered this matter to be one of most
significance in our audit due to the materiality of the
carrying values of such assets to the financial
statements, their susceptibility to various external
risks, including geopolitical risks, difficult economic
situation in certain countr ies, where the Company’s
associates and joint ventures operate, the high level
of subjectivity in assumptions underlying the
impairment analysis and, also, the significant
judgements and estimates made by management.

Information about those assets is dis closed in
Notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Estimation of oil and gas reserves and resources

We considered this matter to be one of most
significance in our audit due to the fact that the
estimate of hydrocarbon reserves and resources has
a significant impact on the impairment test,
depreciation, depletion and amortization and
decommissioning provisions.

The estimation of oil and natu ral gas reserves and
resources is a significant area of judgement due to
the technical uncertainty in assessing quantities and
complex contractual arrangements dictating the
group’s share of reportable volumes.

Reserves and resources are also a fundamental
indicator of the future potential of the Company’s
performance.

Information on the estimation of oil and gas reserves
and resources is disclosed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements as part of
significant accounting estimates.

Other matter

-current non -financial assets

We have obtained and analyzed the latest available
financial information (financial statements) and
assessed their financial position, the presence of
impairment indicators and liquidity p osition.

We have analyzed contracts, agreements and other
documentation, which support the intention and

ability of third parties to recover the amounts

invested by the Company. We assessed the presence
of legal or other restrictions for the recovery of
invested amounts.

As discussed below in the key audit matter
Estimation of oil and gas reserves and resources we
also compared, where applicable, the estimation of
oil and gas reserves and resources and related
forecasted cash flows of associates and join t
ventures used in the impairment review of those
assets with the external expert data.

We analyzed the respective disclosures in
consolidated financial statements.

We performed procedures to assess competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the external expert
engaged by the Company to estimate volumes of oll
and gas reserves and resources. We assessed the
assumptions used by the external expert and
compared the assumptions to t he macroeconomic
indicators, hydrocarbon production, operating costs,
capital expenditures forecasts and other
performance indicators, approved by the Company 's
management. We compared the estimates of
reserves and resources to the estimates included in
the consideration of impairment, depreciation,
depletion and amortization and decommissioning
provisions.

The information accompanying the consolidated financial statements which has been disclosed as
Supplementary oil and gas disclosure on page 83 is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not within the scope of IFRS. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the consolidated financial statements and, accordingly, we do

not express an opinion on it.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Other information included in the Management 's discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations and Annual report

Other information consists of the Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition
and results of operations for 2019 (but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’ s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor s report,
and the 2019 Annual report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date
Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowle dge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the
other information obtained prior to the date of the auditor s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the prepa ration and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material m isstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Com pany’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor 's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor 's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolida ted financial
statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

y

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finan cial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatemen t resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company ’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonab leness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management 's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company 's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor 's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors with a statement that we have
complied with re levant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited






Rosneft Oil Company

Consolidated balance sheet

(in billions of Russian rubles)

As of December 31,

Notes 2019 2018
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18 228 832
Restricted cash 18 10 12
Other short-term financial assets 19 501 633
Accounts receivable 20 750 642
Inventories 21 438 393
Prepayments and other current assets 22 469 510
Total current assets 2,396 3,022
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 23 8,713 8,445
Right-of-use assets 24 160 -
Intangible assets 25 69 75
Other long-term financial assets 26 229 239
Investments in associates and joint ventures 27 803 735
Bank loans granted 291 239
Deferred tax assets ' 15 33 28
Goodwill 25 85 85
Other non-current non-financial assets 28 171 ' 295
Total non-current assets 10,554 10,141
Total assets 12,950 13,163
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 29 1,162 1,130
Loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities 30 795 978
Income tax liabilities 23 23
Other tax liabilities 3 379 327
Provisions 32 55 43
Prepayment on long-term oil and petroleum products supply agreements 33 332 354
Other current liabilities 9 19
Total current liabilities 2,755 2,874
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities 30 3,033 3,413
Deferred tax liabilities 15 844 837
Provisions 32 343 244
Prepayment on long-term oil and petroleum products supply agreements 33 750 1,072
Other non-current liabilities 34 73 46
Total non-current liabilities 5,043 5,612
Equity ;
Share capital 36 1 1
Additional paid-in capital 635 633
Other funds and reserves (154) (191)
Retained earnings 4,035 3,610
Rosneft shareholders’ equity 4,517 4,053
Non-controlling interests 16 635 624
Total equity 5,152 4,677
Total liabilities and equity 12,950 13,163
Chief Executive Officer LI Sechin February 19 , 2020

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Rosneft Oil Company

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

(in billions of Rusian rubles, except earnings per share data, and share amounts)

For the years ended December 31,

Notes 2019 2018

Revenues and equity share in fits of associates

and joint ventures
Oil, gas, petroleum products and petrochemisalss 8 8,490 8,076
Support services and other revenues 86 80
Equity share in profits of associates and joint ventures 27 100 82
Total revenues and equity share in profits of

associates angbint ventures 8,67 8,238
Costs and expenses
Production an@perating expenses 715 626
Cost of purchased oil, gas, petroleum products,

goods for retaiand refining costs 1,566 1,115
General and administrative expenses 200 167
Transportation costnd other commercial expenses 733 638
Exploration expenses 11 11
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2325 687 635
Taxes other than income tax 9 2,666 2,701
Export customs duty 10 793 1,061
Total costs and expenses 7,371 6,954
Operating income 1,305 1,284
Finance income 11 143 122
Finane expenses 12 (227) (290)
Other income 13 11 49
Other expenses 13 (153 (294)
Foreign exchange differences 64 107
Realized foreign exchange differences on hedge instruments 6 (146) (146)
Income before income tax 997 832
Income tax expense 15 (192) (183)
Net income 805 649
Net income attributable to:
- Rosneft shareholders 708 549
- nortcontrolling interests 16 97 100
Net income attributable to Rosneft per common share (iRUB) —

basicand diluted 17 66.81 51.80
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (millions) 10,598 10,598

* Some amounts for the twelve months ended Decembh&@038have been reclassifiddr compliance witithe current period
presentation

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
10



Rosneft Oil Company

Consolidated statement ohetr comprehensive income

(in billions of Russian rubles)

For the years ended December 31,

Notes 2019 2018

Net income 805 649
Other comprehensive income-to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Foreign exchange differences on translation of foreign operati (88) 4
Foreign exchange cash flow hedges 6 146 146
Incomé(loss) from changes in fair value of debt financial asse!

fair value through other comprehensive income 5 (2)
Increase in allowance for expected credit losses on debt finan

assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 1 7
Equity shae in other comprehensive (loss)/income of associat: 4) 1
Income tax related to other comprehensive incerttebe

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 6 (29) (30)
Total other comprehensive income-to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods, net of tax 31 126
Other comprehensive income- not to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Income from changes in fair value of equity financial assets at

value through other comprehensive income 7 6
Income tax related to other comprehensive incemet to be

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (1) (1)
Total comprehensive income- not to be reclassified tgorofit or

loss in subsequent periods, net of tax 6 5
Total comprehersive income, net of tax 842 780
Total comprehensive income, net of tax, attributable to:
- Rosneft shareholders 745 680
- nortcontrolling interests 97 100

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
11



Rosneft Oil Company

Consolidated statement of changeshareholders’ equity

(in billions of Russian rubles, except share amounts)

Rosneft
Number Additional Other share- Non-
of shares Share paid-in  fundsand Retained holders controlling Total
(millions) capital capital reserved  earnings equity interests equity
Balance at January 1,

2018 10,598 1 627 (322) 3,286 3,52 563 4,1%
Net income - - - - 549 549 100 649
Other comprehensive

income — — — 131 — 131 — 131
Total comprehensive

income - - - 131 549 680 100 780
Dividends declared

(Note36) - - - - (225) (225) (61) (286)
Change of interest in

subsidiaries - - 5 - - 5 21 26
Other movements

(Note 16) - - 1 - - 1 1 2
Balance at December 3!

2018 10,598 1 633 (191) 3,610 4,053 624 4,677
Net income - - - - 708 708 97 805
Other comprehensive

income - - - 37 - 37 - 37
Total comprehensive

income — — — 37 708 745 97 842
Dividends declared

(Note 36) - - - - (283) (283) (99) (382)
Change of interest in

sulsidiaries - - 1 - - 1 3 4
Other movements

(Note 16) - - 1 - - 1 10 11
Balance at December 3!

2019 10,598 1 635 (154) 4,035 4,517 635 5,152
* Other funds and reserves inclualeeserve fordreign exchange differences on translation of foreign opesat reserve for changes in fair

value of equity and debt financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive mcessve for expected credit losses on sigtft
financial assetsa reserve forquity share in other comprehensive incomessfogiates and joint venturemnd a reserve for foreign exchange
cash flow hedges

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
12



Rosneft Oil Company

Consolidatedgtatement of cash flows

(in billions of Russian rubles)

For the years ended December 31,
Notes 2019 2018

Operating activities
Net income 805 649

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operatirg activities

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 23-25 687 635
Loss on disposal of necurrent assets 13 16 14
Dry hole costs 3 3
Offset of prepayments received on oil and petroleum produci
long term supply agreements 33 (344 (283)
Offset d prepayments made on oil and petroleum products Ic
term supply agreements 138 205
Foreign exchange gain on noperating activities (91) (77)
Realized foreign exchange differences on hedge instruments 6 146 146
Offset of other financial liabilities (172 (164)
Equity share in profits of associates and joint ventures 27 (100) (82)
Non-cash income from acquisitions, net 13 - (26)
Loss from disposal of neproduction assets 13 - 1
Changes in provisions for financial assets 41 6
Loss from changeis reservesand impairment of assets 105 238
Finance expenses 12 227 290
Finance income 11 (143 (122)
Income tax expense 15 192 183
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increas@/decrease in accounts receivable, gross (139 215
Increag in inventories (43) (68)
Decrease in restricted cash 2 5
Increase in prepayments and other current assets (58 (74)
Increase in longerm prepayments made on oil and petroleun
products supply agreements (67) (72)
Increasddecreasgin accounts ayable and accrued liabilities 14 (29)
Increase in other tax liabilities 49 48
Decrease in other current liabilities 9 (8)
Increase in other necurrent liabilities 3 8
Increase ircurrent reserves 2 -
Interest paid on longerm prepayment reted on oil and
petroleum products supply agreements (8) (6)
Net increase in operating assets of subsidiary banks (61 (139)
Netincrease in operating liabilities of subsidiary banks 4 144
Net cash provided by operating activities before income tax
and interest 1,199 1,640
Income tax payments (216 (221)
Interest received 77 67
Dividends received 50 16
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,110 1,502

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
13



Rosneft Oil Company

Consolidated statement of cash flo¢continued)

(in billions of Russian rubles)

For the years ended December 31,

Notes 2019 2018

Investing activities
Capital expenditures (859 (936)
Acquisition of licenses and auction fee payments 1y 3)
Acquisition of shorterm financial assets (93 (419)
Proceeds from sale of shderm financial assets 240 189
Proceeds from sale of losigrm financialassets 12 466
Acquisitionof long-term financial assets (18) (73
Acquisition of interesandadditional capitatontributionto the

associates and joint ventures 4 (2)
Acquisition of interest in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired, an

joint arrang@ments 7 (12 (35)
Proceeds from sale of investments in joint ventures - 7
Proceeds from salef interest in subsidiaries, net of cash acquir 5 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6 7
Net cash used in investing activities (729 (799)
Financing activities
Proceeds from shoetérm loans and borrowings 401 429
Repayment of shoterm loans and borrowings (689 (1,366)
Proceeds from lorterm loans and borrowings 393 1,311
Repayment of longerm loans and borrowings (540 (289)
Proceeds from other financial liabilities 185 338
Repayment of other financial liabilities (57) (64)
Interest paid (280) (284)
Repurchase of bonds - (40)
Proceeds from sale of naontrolling share in subsidiary - 23
Otherfinancingreceived 12 4
Dividends paid to Rosneft shareholders 36 (283) (225)
Dividends paid to nowontrolling shareholders (99) (65)
Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities (957 (228)
Net (decreasé/increase in cash and cash equivalents (576) 475
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18 832 322
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents (28) 35
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 228 832

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements

14




Rosneft Oil Company
Notes tothe consolidated financial statement

December 31, 2019

(all amounts in tables are in billions of Russian rubles, except as noted otherwise)

1. General

Public Joint Stock Company (“PJSC”) Rogn@il Company (“Rosneft”) and its subsidis (collectively,
the“Company”) areprincipally engaged in exploration, development, production and sale of crude oil and gas
and refining, transportation and sale of petroleum products in the Russian Fedaration certain
international markets.

Rosneft State Enterprise was incorporated as an open joint stock company on December 7, 1995. All asse
and liabilities previously managed by Rosneft State Enterprise were transferred to the Company at their boc
value effective on that date together with ownership rights to other privatized oil and gas companies belongin
to the Government of the Russian Federation (the “State”). The transfer of assets and liabilities was made
accordance with Russian GovernmepsBlution No971 dated September 29, 1995, iBa Transformation

of Rosneft State Enterprise into Open Joint Stock Company “Oil Company Ro$hefe transfers involved

the reorganization of assets under the common control of the State and, accondirgylgccounted for at

their book value. In 2005, the State contributed the shares of Rosneft to the share capital o
JSCROSNEFTEGAS. As of December 31, 2005, 100% of the shares of Rosneft less one share were owne
by JSC ROSNEFTEGAS and one share was owned by the Russian Federation Federal Agency for tr
Management of Federal Property. Subsequently, JSC ROSNEFTEG@\®Bership interest decreased
through the additional issue of shares during Rosn#fitial Public Offering (“IPO”) in Russia, an issue of
Global Depository Receipts (“GDR”) for shares on the London Stock Exchange and the share swap complete
during the merger of Rosneft and certain subsidiaries in 2006. In March 2013 in the course of the acquisitio
of TNK-BP Limited and TNK Industrial Holdigs Limited, its subsidiary (collectively with their subsidiaries,
“TNK -BP"), JSCROSNEFTEGAS sold 5.66% of Rosneft shares to BP plc. (“BP”). In December 2016
JSCROSNEFTEGAS signed an agreement to sell 19.5% of Rosneft shares to a consortium of foreigr
investors. As of December 31, 20BC ROSNEFTEGAS ownership interest in Rosneft amounted to 50%
plus one share.

Under Russian legislation, natural resources, including oil, gas, precious metals and minerals and othe
commercial minerals situated in thertory of the Russian Federation, are the property of the State until they
are extracted. Law of the Russian Federation28851, On Subsurface Resour¢esgulates relations arising

in connection with the geological study, use and protection of salosurésources in the territory of the
Russian Federation. Pursuant to the law, subsurface resources may be developed only on the basis of a licer
A license is issued by the regional governmental body and contains information on the site to be develope
and the period of activity, as well as financial and other conditionsCoh®any holds licenses issued by
competent authorities for the geological study, exploration and development of oil and gas blocks, fields, an
shelf in areas where its subsidiarégs located.

The Company is subject to export quotas set by the Russian Federation State Pipeline Commission to alla
equal access to the limited capacity of the oil pipeline system owned and operated by PISC AK Transnef
The Company exports certain quantities of crude oil through bypassing the PISC AK Transneft system thu
achieving higher export capacity. The remaining production is processed at the Canapahthird partiés
refineries for further sale on domestic and international markets.

15



Rosneft Oil Company

Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

2. Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financi
Reporting Standards, including all International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and Interpretations
issued by the InternationAlccounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and effective in the reporting period, and
are fully compliant therewith.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain finan
assets and liabilities measured at fair value (Note 37).

Rosneft and its subsidiaries maintain their books and records in accordance with statutory accounting ar
taxation principles and practices applicable in respective jurisdictions. These consolidated financial statemen
were derived from the Compdrsystatutory books and records.

The Companis consolidated financial statements are presented in billions of Russian rubles (“RUB”), unless
otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Chief Executive Office
of the Company on February 19, 2020.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 19iH0@8te these consolidated financial
statements were issued.

3.  Significant accounting policies

The accompanying coolidated financial statements differ from the financial statements issued for statutory
purposes in accordance with Russian accounting principles (RAP) in that they reflect certain adjustments, nc
recorded in the Company’s statutory books, which are appropriate for presenting the financial position, result
of operations and cash flows in accordance with IFR® principal adjustments relate to: (&tognition of

certain expenses; (2pluation and depreciation of property, plant and equipmendef@red income taxes;

(4) impairment ofassets; (5accounting for the time value of money; écounting for investments in oil and

gas property and conveyances; ¢@hsolidation principles; (8ecognition and disclosure of guarantees,
contingencies, comrments and certain othassets and liabilities; (Business combinations and goodwiill;

(10) accounting for derivative instruments; (plychase price allocation to the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed.

The consolidated financiatatements include assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of
the parent and its subsidiaries presented as those of a single economiArgignificant intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated. The equity method is used to account for investments
associates in which the Company has the ability to exert significant influence over the assgaddisig

and financial policies. Investments in entities where the Company holds the majority of shares, bat does
exercise control, are also accounted for using the equity method. Investments in other companies are accoun
for at fair value or cost adjusted for impairment, if ddgtermination of the level of control or influence in

the entities where the Company holds a share is carried out taking into account the powers established by t
agreement in respect of the investmamd the existing rights that provide the Company with the opportunity

to manage significant activities at the present time.
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Rosneft Oil Company

Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinationsand goodwiill

Acquisitions by the Company of controlling interests in third parties (or interest in their charter capital) are
accounted for using the acquisition method.

The date of acquisiih is the date when effective control over the acquiree passes to the Company.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as an aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisi
date fair value, and the amount of any rmomrolling interesin the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Company elects whether it measures thecoatrolling interest in the acquiree eithefait value or at

the proportionate share of the acquisei@entifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurredeapensed and
included in administrative expenses.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisitiol
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is ddenagddset or a
liability should be recognized within profit or loss for the period if they do not represent measypeniaht
adjustments. If theontingent consideration is classified as equity, it should not-beasured.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred an
the amount recognized for na@ontrolling interests over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the aggregate of the considaratansferred and the amount of mmmntrolling interest

is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired and liabilities assumed, the differenc
is recognized in profit or loss for the period.

Associates

Investments in assoced are accounted for using the equity method unless they are classifiedcasreon
assets held for sale. Under this method, the carrying value of investments in associates is initially recognize
at the acquisition cost.

The carrying value of invesents in associates is increased or decreased by the Compported share in the

profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the investee after the acquisition date. The ‘Cainasnin

the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of atiass is recognized in the Compasigonsolidated
statement of profit or loss or in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, respectively
Dividends paid by the associate are accounted for as a reduction of the carrying value of iterestmen

The Companis net investments in associates include the carrying value of the investments in these associats
as well as other lonterm investments that, in substanfrm part of the Compang’ netinvestments in
associateg-or example, an item favhich settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable
future is, in substance, an extension of the Conigainyestment in that associate. Such items may include
entry bonuses, preference shares anddeng receivables or loans, lid not include trade receivables, trade
payables or any longgrm receivables for which adequate collateral exists, such as securedf libenshare

in losses exceeds the carrying value of the investments in associates and the value of etlan long
investments related to investments in these associates, the Company ceases to recognize its share in lo¢
when the carrying value reaches zero. Any additional losses are provided for and liabilities are recognized onl
to the extent that the Company has legal or constructive obligations or has made payments on behalf of t
associatelf the associate subsequently makes profits, the Company resumes recognizing its share in thes
profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognized.

The carrying value of investments in associates is tested for impairment by reconciling its recoverable amour
(the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs to sell) to its carrying value, whenever impairmen
indicators are identifig
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Rosneft Oil Company

Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Joint arrangements
The Company participates in joint arrangements either in the form of joint ventures or joint operations.

A joint venture implies that the parties that have joint control of thegeraent have rights to the net assets of

the arrangement. A joint venture involves establishing a legal entity where the Company and other participan
have respective equity interests. Equity interests in joint ventures are teccfmsrunder the equityiethod, as
described above in respect of associates.

The Compans share in net profit or loss and in other comprehensive income of joint ventures is recognized in
the consolidated statementprbfit or loss and in the consolidated statement of othepirensive income,
respectively, from the date when joint control commences until the date when joint control cqasgs. A
operation implies that the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to tlmdsdgigations

for the labilities, relating to the arrangemelmtrelation to its interest in a joint operation the Company recognizes

its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly, its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly, its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation, its share of the revenu
from the sale of the output by the joint operation, and expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred joint

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash represents cash on hand, in the Compdmank accounts, in transit and interest bearing deposits which
can be effectively withdrawn at any time without prior notice or any penalties reducing the principal amount
of the deposit. Cash equivalents are hidiojyid, shortterm investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and have original maturities of three months or less from their date of purchase. They a
carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. Restricted cash is presented separately
the consolidated balance sheet if its amount is significant.

Financial assets

The Company recognizes financial assets in its balance sheet when, and only when, it becomes a party to
contractual provisions of the &incial instrumen¥Vhen financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured
at fair value, which is usually the price of the transaction, i.e. the fair value of consideration paid or received.

When financial assets are recognized initially, they are classified as one of the following, as appropriate:
(1) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

(2) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, or

(3) financial assets at amortised cost.

The Company classés financial assets on the basis of both: the Compdnuginess model for managing the
financial assets, as well as the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cc
or at fair value through other comprehensive income. However the Company may make an irrevocable electic
at initial recognition for particular instruments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair
value through profit or loss to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income.

All derivative instruments are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value in either current financic
assets, nogurrent financiaassets, current liabilities related to derivative instruments, ecawent liabilities

related to derivative instruments. The recognition and classification of a gain or loss that results from
recognition of an adjustment of a derivative instrumeriaiatvalue depends on the purpose for issuing or
holding the derivative instrument. Gains and losses from derivatives that are not accounted for as hedges unc
International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRSfriancial Instrumentsre recognized immediately in

the profit or loss for the period.
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Rosneft Oil Company

Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction betweenarket participants at the measurement date. Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair
value of financial assets at fair value that are quoted in an active market is defined as bid prices for assets a
ask prices for issued liabilities as of the measergmate.

If no active market exists for financial assets, the Company measures the fair value using the following
methods:

x  analysis of recent transactions with peer instruments between independent parties;

X current fair value of similar financial instruments;

X discounting future cash flows.

The discount rate reflects the minimum return on investment an investor is willing to accept before starting a
alternative project, given its risk and the opportunity cost of forgoing other projects.

A financial asseshall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(@ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order t
collect contractual cash flows, and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solel
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Examples of financial assets that may fall into this category are loans given, accounts receindblant
notes issued by%Bparties, which are not quoted at active market — if they fulfill the requirements set above.

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met:

(@ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assetd,

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows sodtlar
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

In particular, this category includes shares of other companies, which are not included in the category o
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Dividends and intest income are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on an accrual
basis. The amount of accrued interest income is calculated using the effective interest rate.

Upon derecognition of debt financial assets (bonds, notes etc.) ctabsaiifinancial instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in othel
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. In case of equity financial assets (shares, stocks etc
classified as financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, such cumulative gain c
loss shall never be subsequently transferred to profit or loss.

Interest income as a component of finance income is disclosed in the notes tolfgiatai@ents separately
for each category of financial assets.

Regular way purchasesdnsales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities

The Company recognizes financialHilities on its balance sheet when, and only when, it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. When financial liabilities are recognized initially, they
are measured at fair value, which is usually the price of the ttamsa.e. the fair value of consideration paid

or received.

When financial liabilities are recognized initially, they are classified as one of the following:
x  financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss;

X other financial liabilities.

Finarctial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial liabilities held for trading unless such
liabilities are linked to the delivery of unquoted equity instruments.

At the initial recognition, the Company may include in this category iaaydial liability, except for equity
instruments that are not quoted in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Aft
initial recognition, however, the liability cannot be reclassified.

Financial liabilities not classified améncial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
other financial liabilities. Other financial liabilities include, inter alia, trade and other accounts payable, and
loans and borrowings payable.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost.

The Company writes off a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) from its balance sheet when, and
only when, it is extinguished ize. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference betweeretbarrying value of a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability)
extinguished or transferred to another party and the redemption value, including any transfemedeatany

assets and assumed liabilities, is recognized in profit orAogspreviously recognized components of other
comprehensive income pertaining to this financial liability are also included in the financial result and are
recognized as gains and losses for the period

Certain prior period indicators have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. In particula
due to significant increase in the operating activities of subsidiary banks of the Company and the need fc
reliable and consistent reporting in the consolidated financial statements, thegpi@sef cash flows from

the operating activities of subsidiary banks was revised. Such activities are now included within operating
activities of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. Further, the operating assets of the subsidiary banl
including $ort-term interbank deposits placed, were reclassified to Accounts Receivable, operating liabilities,
including interbank loans, customer deposits, promissory notes and REPO obligations reclassified from Loan
and borrowings and other financial liabilitiesAccounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net earnings attributable to common shares by the weight:
average number of common shares outstanding during the corresponding petial.absence of any

securitiesto-shares conversion transactions, the amount of basic earnings per share stated in these consolida
financial statements is equal to the amount of diluted earnings per share.
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continuej
Treasury shares

Treasury shares are outstanding Treasury shares purchased from the shardih@demnpany acquires
shares of Rosneft in accordance with the program of acquisition of shares in the open market (Note 36
Treasury shares are presentadthe consolidated balance sheet as a deduction from equity at cost of
repurchase.

Inventories

Inventories consisting primarily of crude oil, petroleum products, petrochemicals and materials and supplies
are accounted for at the weighted average cdessimet realizable value is less than cost. Materials that are
used in production are not written down below cost if the finished products into which they will be incorporated
are expected to be sold above cost.

Repurchase and resale agreements

Securites sold under repurchase agreements (“REPQ”) and securities purchased under agreements to res
(“reverse REPQO") generally do not constitute a sale of the underlying securities for accounting purposes, an
so are treated as collateralized financing transactions. Interest paid or received on all REPO and reverse REI
transactions is recorded in Finance expense or Finance income, respectilielypatractually specified rate

using the effective interest method.

Exploration and production assets

Exploration and production assets include exploration and evaluation assets, mineral rights and oil and gz
properties (development assets and production assets).

Exploration and evaluation costs

The Company recognizes exploration and evaluation costs hsirsytcessful efforts method as permitted by
IFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resourddisder this method, costs related to exploration and
evaluation (license acquisition costs, exploration and appraisal drilling) are temporarilyzempitatiost centers

by field (well) until the drilling program results in the discovery of economically feasible oil and gas reserves.

The length of time necessary for this determination depends on the specific technical or economic difficultie:
in assessing the recoverability of the reserves. If a determination is made that the well did not encounter o
and gas in economically viable quantities, the well costs are expensed to Exploration expenses in th
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Exploraton and evaluation costs, except for costs associated with seismic, topographical, geological, ant
geophysical surveys, are initially capitalized as exploration and evaluation assets. Exploration and evaluatio
assets are recognized at cost less impairnieahy, as property, plant and equipment until the existence
(or absence) of commercial reserves has been established. The initial cost of exploration and evaluation ass
acquired through a business combination is formed as a result of purchaskquatioa. The cost allocation

to mineral rights to proved properties and mineral rights to unproved properties is performed based on th
respective oil and gas reserves information. Exploration and evaluation assets are subject to technice
commercial ad management review as well as review for indicators of impairment at least once a year. This
is to confirm the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract value from the discovery. When indicators
of impairment are present, an impairment test isopedéd.

If, subsequently, commercial reserves are discovered, the carrying value, less losses from impairment of tt
respective exploration and evaluation assets, is classified as oil and gas properties (development asset
However, if no commercial resays are discovered, such costs are expensed after exploration and evaluation
activities have been completed.
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Development and production

Oil and gas properties (development assets) are accounted for ield-byffield basis and represent

(1) capitalized costs to develop discovered commercial reserves and to put fields into production, anc
(2) exploration and evaluation costs incurred to discover commercial reserves reclassified from exploratior
and evaluabn assets to oil and gas properties (development assets) following the discovery of commercia
reserves.

The cost of oil and gas properties (development assets) also includes the expenditures to acquire such ass
directly identifiable overhead expenses, capitalized financing costs and related asset retirement
(decommissioning) obligation costs. Oil and gas properties (development assets) are generally recognized
construction in progress.

Following the commencement of commercial production, oil gasl properties (development assets) are
reclassified as oil and gas properties (production assets).

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost as of the acquisition date, except for propert
plant and equipment acquired prior to January 1, 2009, which is stated at deemed cost, net of accumulat
depreciation and impairment. The cost of maintenance, repairs, and the replacement of minor items of proper
is charged to operating expenses. Renearadisbetterments of assets are capitalized.

Upon the sale or retirement of property, plant and equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciati
are eliminated from the accounts. Any resulting gains or losses are included in profit or loss.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

Oil and gas properties are depleted using theafrproduction method on a fieklly-field basis starting from
the commencement of commercial production.

In applying the unibf-production method to mineral licenséise depletion rate is based on total proved
reserves. In applying the uwmf-production method to producing wells and the related oil and gas
infrastructure, the depletion rate is based on proved developed reserves.

Other property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the slirmégmiethod over their estimated useful
lives from the time they are ready for use, except for catalysts which are amortized usingdfiprodiiction
method.

Components of other property, plant and equipment andrésgiective estimated useful lives are as follows:

Useful life,
Property, plant and equipment not more than
Buildings and structures 3045 years
Plant and machinery 5-25 years
Vehicles and other property, plant and equipment 6-10 years
Service vesds 20 years
Offshore drilling assets 20 years

Land generally has an indefinite useful life and is therefore not depreciated.
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Construction grants

The Company recognizes construction grants from locadrgovents when there is a reasonable assurance
that the Company will comply with the conditions attached and that the grant will be receivedn$traction
grants are accounted for as a reduction of the cost of the asset for which the grant is received.

Impairment of non-current assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or c
generating unit may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amou
of the asset or casfenerating unit.

In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the Company considers internal ¢
external sources of information. It considers at least the following:
External sources of information:

X  during the period, an as&tmarket value has declined significantly more than would be expected as
aresult of the passage of time or normal use;

X  significant changes with an adverse effect on the Company have taken place during the period, or wil
take place in the near future, in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which
the Company operates or in the market to which an asset is dedicated;

X market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have increased during the perio
and those increases are likely to affect the discount rate used in calculating anvadsetin use and
decrease the assetecoverable amount materially;

X  the carrying amount of the net assets of the Company is more than its market capitalization.

Internal sources of information:
X evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an asset;

X  significant changes with an adverse effect on the Company have taken place during the period, or ar
expected to take place in the near future, in the etdemhich, or manner in which, an asset is used or
is expected to be used (e.g., the asset becoming idle, or the useful life of an asset is reassessed as fil
rather than indefinite);

X information on dividends from a subsidiary, joint venture or assgciate

X evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the economic performance of an asset i
or will be, worse than expected. Such evidence includes the existence of:

X cash flows on acquiring the asset, or subsequent cash needs for operataigtaining it, that
are significantly higher than those originally budgeted,;

x actual net cash flows or operating profit or loss flowing from the asset that are significantly worse
than those budgeted;

X a significant decline in budgeted net cash flowsgrating profit, or a significant increase in
budgeted losses, flowing from the asset;

X  operating losses or net cash outflows for the asset, when current period amounts are aggregate
with budgeted amounts for the future.
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.  Significant accounting polcies (continued)
Impairment of non-current assets(continued)

The following factors indicate that exploration and evaluation assets may be impaired:

x  the period for which the Company has the right to explore in the specific area has expired during the
peliod or will expire in the near future, and is not expected to be renewed;

X  substantive expenditure on further exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned;

X exploration for and evaluation of minerakources in the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and the Company has decided to discontinue suc
activities in the specific area;

x  sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development in the specific area is likely to proceed, the
carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in full from
successful development or by sale.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a-gasierating unit is the Higr of:
X  the value in use of an asset (cagmerating unit); and

x  the fair value of an asset (cagénerating unit) less costs to sell.

If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets,
recoverable amount is determined for the assskhgenerating unit.

The Company initially measures the value in use of a-gaskrating unit. When the carrying amount of
acashgenerating unit is greater than its value in use, the Company measures 'thdfaimitalue for

the purpose of measuring the recoverable amount. When the fair value is less than the carrying value &
impairment loss is recognized.

Value in use is determined by discounting the estimated value of the future cash inflows expected tedoe deriv
from the asset or cagjenerating unit, including cash inflows from its sale. The value of the future cash inflows
from a caskgenerating unit is determined based on the forecast approved by managetmebtisihess unit

to which the unit in question pertains.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date the Company recognizdamnce for expected credit losses on a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, and at fair value through other comprehensive income, a lease raceivable
contract asset or a loan commitment and a financial guarantee contract to which the impairment requiremen
apply. Requirements of IFRS 9 concerning impairment do not apply to equity instruments of any category a
well as to the instruments at fair vatiugh profit or loss.

The allowance for financial asset at amortised cost is recognized in profit or loss in correspondence with
balance sheet account reducing the carrying amount of the financialTéesatlowance for financial assets

at fair valie through other comprehensive income shall be recognized in other comprehensive income an
shall not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Expected credit losses for significant counterpartiedidingbanks are determined based on credit rating of
particular counterparty and relevant probability of default.

Total increase in thallowance for financial assets totaled RUB l&llion in 2019;total decrease of this
allowance for the same year totaledBR16 billion; above mentioned movements are recognized within the
Statement of profit or loss of the Company.
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Capitalized interest

Interest expense on borrowed funds used for capital construction projects and the acqusitipartf, plant

and equipment is capitalized provided that the interest expense could have been avoided if the Company h
not made capital investments. Interest is capitalized only during the period when construction activities are
actually in progress and until the resulting properties are put into operation.

Capitalized borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to theextent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Leasing agreements

In respect of the contracts (or separate components of a contract), which convey to the Company the right
control the use of an identified asset (as it is determined in IFR®&d<®) for a period of time in exchange

for consideration, the Company recognizes a fighise asset and a lease liability at the commencement date.
Non-lease components of the contract are accounted for in accordance with other relevant IFRS.

In accordance with requirements of IFRS 16 Lgaam® 38, the Compay does not apply the &tdard to

leases to explore for or use minerals, oil, natural gas and similaegenerative resources and to leases of
wells, to shorterm leases (taking into consideration economically feasible prolongations), as well as to leases
for which the underlying asset is of low value (less kKRUB 300).

The Company determines the lease term as theaocellable period of a lease, together with both: periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if the lesgeassnably certain &xercise that option; ameriods
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the lesseasenably certain not to exercise that option.

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payme
that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate,
interest rate implicit in the leasas a rulecan not be readily determineds the finance function lays
predominantly within the parent compaimycremental borrowing rates are calculated centrally, except for the
banks of the Group and cases of direct financing of the subsidiaries.

At the commencement date, the Company measures th®@fighé asset at cost, which comprises the amount

of the iniial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement da
less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee, an estimate of costs to
incurred by the lessee in dismantling andoging the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located

or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless tho
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Lease payments are evemwigtributed between finance expenses and a decrease of a lease liability so that a
constant periodic rate of interest is produced on the remaining balance of the lease liability. Finance expens
are recognized in Consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In respect of subseguieaccounting of a leased property the same accounting policies are applied as for the
owned assets, e.g. depreciation charge policy.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Asset retirement (decommissioning) obligations

The Company has asset retirement (decommissioning) obligations associated with its core business activitie
The nature of the assets and potential obligations are as follows:

The Compan)s exploration, development and production activities involveshetiwells, related equipment

and operating sites, oil gathering and treatment facilities, tank farms &aldiipipelines. Generally, licenses

and other regulatory acts require that such assets be decommissioned wgmmmpth&on of production.
According to these requirements, the Company is obliged to decommission wells, dismantle equipment, restot
the sites and perform other related activities. The Compagstimates of these obligations are based on
current regulatory or license requirements,wadl as actual dismantling and other related costs. These
liabilities are measured by the Company using the present value of the estimated future costs o
decommissioning of these assets. The discount rate is reviewed at each reporting date and meffécts cu
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

In accordance with IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") Interpretation 1 Changes in Existing
Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilitigee provison is reviewed at each balance sheet date as
follows:

X upon changes in the estimates of future cash flows (e.g., the costs of and timeframe for abandoning or
well) or the discount rate, changes in the amount of the liability are included in the casttefrtiof
property, plant, and equipment, whereby such cost may not be negative and may not exceed th
recoverable value of the item of property, plant, and equipment;

X any changes in the liability due to its nearing maturity (change in the discourt}@geized in Finance
expenses.

The Companys refining and distribution activities involve refining operations, marine and other distribution
terminals, and retail sales. The Compamgfining operations consist of major petrochemical operations and
industrial complexes. Legal or contractual asset retirement (decommissioning) obligations related tc
petrochemical, oil refining and distribution activities are not recognized due to the limited history of such
activities in these segments, the lack of clegal requirements as to the recognition of obligations, as well as
the fact that decommissioning periods for such assets are not determinable.

Because of the reasons described above, the fair value of an asset retirement (decommissioning) obligation
the refining and distribution segment cannot be reasonably estimated.

Due to continuous changes in the Russian regulatory and legal environment, there could be future changes
the requirements and contingencies associated with the retirement-ti¥/ lethgssets.

Income tax

Since 2012 Russian tax legislation has allowed income taxes to be calculated on a consolidated vesis. The
subsidiaries of the Company were therefore combined into a consolidated group of taxpaye48)(Nfate
subsidiaries Wich are not included in the consolidated group of taxpayers, income tax is calculated on an
individual subsidiary basis. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognizeddcompanying
consolidated financial statements in the amount detednby the Company in accordance with 1AS 12
Income Taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between th
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reparfioges.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)
A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferrec
tax liability arises from:
X  the initial recognition ofjoodwill;
x  the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which:
X is not a business combination; and
X affects neither accounting profit, nor taxable profit;

X investments in subsidiaries when the Company is able to control the timing oévirsal of
thetemporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
theforeseeable future.

A prior period tax loss planned to be used to reduce the current or future amount of income tax is recognize
as a deferred tax asset.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized, unless the deferred tax asset arises frc
the initial recogrtion of an asset or liability in a transaction that:

X is not a business combination; and
X at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
The Company recognizes deferred tax assets for all deductiblersgngisferences arising from investments

in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, to the extent that the following two condition
are met:

x  the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future; and
X  taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the per

when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on taxaateimk laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow frol
the manner in which the Company expects, at tiokoé the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legall
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilitiehandhey relate to income taxes
levied by the taxation authority of the same jurisdiction and the Company intends to settle its current tax asse
and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balastodaste

The Company reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable tl
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferredtax assets and liabilities are classified as-Sament Deferred tax assets and Momrent Deferred
tax liabilities, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Recognition of revenues

Revenues are recognized when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtz
control of that asset, which uelly occurs when the title is passed, provided that the contract price is fixed or
determinable and collectability of the amount of the consideration is prolsaeifically, domestic sales of
crude oil and gas, as well as petroleum products and matargausually recognized when title passes. For
export sales, title generally passes at the border of the Russian Federation. Revenue is measured at the
value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of any ¢addgigolume
rebates and reimbursable taxes.

Sales of support services are recognized as services are performed provided that the service price can
determined and no significant uncertainties regarding the receipt of revenues exist.

Transportation expenses

Transportation expenses recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represent all expens
incurred by the Company to transport crude oil for refining and to end customers, and to deliver petroleun
products from refineries to endistomers (these may include pipeline tariffs and any additional railroad
transportation costs, handling costs, port fees, sea freight and other costs).

Refinery maintenance costs

The Company recognizes the costs of overhauls and preventive maintendoicegaewith respect to oil
refining assets as expenses when incurred.

Environmental liabilities

Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations, and do not have a future econon
benefit, are expensed. Liabilities for these expenditures are recorded when environmental assessments or cle
ups are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated.

Accounting for contingencies

Certain conditions may exist as of the date of these consolidated financial statements whictherae fuitt

in a loss to the Company, but which will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to
occur. The Compang management makes an assessment of such contingent liabilities which is based or
assumptions and is a matter of opmitn assessing loss contingencies relating to legal or tax proceedings that
involve the Company or unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings, the Company, after consultatit
with legal or tax advisors, evaluates the perceived merits of aalydetax proceedings or unasserted claims

as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein.

Provisions anaontingentiabilities do notconstitute finally asserted legal obligations of PJ8Gsheft Oil
Company”.

If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is probable that a loss will be incurred and the amount «
theliability can be estimated, then the estimated liability is accrued in the Compaomsolidated financial
statements. If the assessment indicates that a potentially material loss contingency is not probable, but
reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the contingent liability, togeth
with an estimate of the range of possible loss if detexble and material, would be disclosed.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Accounting for contingencies(continued)

Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they involve financial guarantees,
which casehe nature of the guarantee would be disclosed. However, in some instances in which disclosure i
not otherwise required, the Company may disclose contingent liabilities or other uncertainties of an unusue
nature which, in the judgment of management aft@sultation with its legal or tax counsel, may be of interest

to shareholders or others.

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities
Refundable taxes (excise and vahdeled tax (“VAT”")) are deducted from revenues. Othergaal duties
are not deducted from revenues and are recognized as expenses in Taxes other than income tax in

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

VAT and excise receivable and payable are recognized as Prepayments and other current assetsand Oth
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet, respectively.

Excisesnon-refundable by customers

Excises nonrefundable by customers are presented within Taxes other than income tax in the Consolidate
statement of profit or los$he expenses méoned above are decreased by reverse eanipetroleum crudes

Tax on additional income(AIT)

AIT is recognized as an expense within Taxes other than inconie Gonsolidated statement of profit or
loss

Functional and presentation currency

The casolidated financial statements are presented in Russian rubles, which is the functional currency o
Rosneft Oil Company and all of its subsidiaries operating in the Russian Federation. The functional currenc
of the foreign subsidiaries is generally th&ldollar.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
the dates of these transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlenient of st
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencie
atyearend exchange rates are recognized in the profit or loss for the period.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities designat
as foreign currency cash flow hedging instruments are recognized within other comprehensive income an
reclassified to profit or loss in the period when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Non-monetary itens that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the

exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactionsnhiogtary items measured at fair valuaforeign
currency are translated using the exchantgsrat the date when the fair value is determined.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Functional and presentation currency (continued)

The Companis subsidiaries

The results and financial position of all of the Comparspbsidiaries, jot ventures and associates that have
a functional currency which is different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentatiot

currency as follows:

X  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at th
reportingdate;

X income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and each statement of other comprehensi
income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approxima
of the cumulative effectfahe rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the datiestadnsactions); and

X all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of other comprehensi
income.

Prepayment on oil and petroleum products supply agreements

In the ordinancourse of businesthie Company enters into lottgrm oil supply contracts. The contract terms
may require the buyer to make a prepayment.

The Company considers lomgrm oil suply contracts to be regulavay sale contracts entered into and
continued to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery cfimancial items in accordance with
the Companys expectedourchase, sale or usage requiremdRégularway sale contrastare exempted from
the scope of IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentatind IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Conditions for meeting the definition of a reguealy sale are not met if either of the following applies:

X  the ability to settle net in cash or another financial instrument, or by exchanging financial instruments,
is not explicit in the tans of the contract, but the Company has a practice of settling similar contracts
netin cash or via another financial instrument or by exchanging financialimmsnts (whether with
the counterparty, by entering into offsetting contracts or by sellingctimtract before its exercise
or lapse);

x  for similar contracts, the Company has a practice of taking delivery of the underlying goods and selling
them within a bort period after delivery for the purpose of generating a profit from -sont
fluctuations in price or from a dealsmargin.

Prepaymentseceivedfor the delivery of goods or respective deferred revenue are accounted for-as non

financial liabilitiesbecause the outflow of economic benefits associated with them is the delivery of goods and
services rather than a contractual obligation to pay cash or another financial asset.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Changes in accounting poli@s and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the adoption
the new standards and interpretations as well as amendments to existing standards effective as of January 1, 2(

The following standards were applied for the first time in 2019:

X

IFRS l6.easesThe new standard, issued in 2016, replaces the previous leases standard, IAS 17 Lease
and the related interpretations; IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases axpeithing leases
or finance leases thus establishing a single lessee accounting model.

The Company elected to apply the modified retrospective approach which provides for recognition of
the cumulative effect of initial application at the date of thiairapplication i.e. January 1, 2019.

At the date of initial application the Company used the transition practical expedient allowing the
standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as finance or operating lease
applying IAS 17 and IFRIQGL. The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease
contracts that have a lease term of 12 months or less (including all economically reasonable prolongatio
options) and do not contain a purchase option, and leaseatsritiawhich the underlying asset is of

low value (below RUR 300 thousandhe Company did not use hindsight at initial application of the
Standard.

Oneoff increase in nomrurrent assets and financial liabilities due to recognition of leases previously
classified as an operating lease applying IAS 17 totaled Rd3billion as of January 1, 2019.

This amount can be reconciled to the undiscounted future minimum lease payments under the operatir
lease agreements disclosed in the annual consolidated financial statements of the Company as
December 31, 2018 as follows:

Future minimum lease payments under operating lease agreements as of

December 31, 2018 312
Effect of discounting using incremental borrowing rate as of the date of initial applic: (178)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 134
Decreased by the present value of the following:

- payments for the rent of land related to exploration and evaluation and for rent of v (16)
- payments upon contracts with a lease tefrhi2 months or less (including all

economicallyreasonable prolongation options) (12)
- payments for leases of levalue items (3)
Total 103

Treatment for leases previously classified as finance leases at the date of initial recognition is disclose
in Note 24 “Leases”.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosurésontinued)

X

4.

IFRIC 23 Interpretation entitletUncertaintyover Income Tax Treatmenishe IFRIC clarifies that for

the purposes of calculating current and deferred tax, companies should use a tax treatment c
uncertainties, which will probably be accepted by the tax authorities. Tdrerigtiation did not have

a material impact on theonsolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments named Prepayment Features with Negative
CompensationThe amendments relate to financial assets with an option of early pemtaythe
conditions of which allow early prepayment in a variable amount, which in turn may exceed as well as
may be lower than remaining outstanding cash flows. The amendments allow to measure such prepa
financial assets with scalled negative compensation at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if a specified condition is migistead of at fair value through profit or loss.
Theamendments did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements due to th
absence of such instruments.

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits named Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlemen
Theamendments specify how companies determine pension expenses when changes to a defined ben:
pension plan occur. The amendments did not have a material impact on the consolidated financia
statements.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make a number of accounti
estimates and assuripts that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities. The actual results, however, could differ from those estimates.

The most significant accounting estimates and assumptions used by the Campamggement in preparing
the consolidated financial statements include:

X

X

X

estimation of oil and gas reserves;
estimation of rights to, recoverability and useful lives of normrent assets;

impairment of goodwill, fixed assetd rightof-use asds (Note 25 “Intangible assets and goodwill”
Note23 “Property, plant and equipment and construction in progees$’Note 24 Lease agreemenis”

estimated credit losses faccounts receivable (Not® 2Accounts receivableétc);

assessment of assettirement (decommissioning) obligationdlofe3 “Significant accounting
policies”, section: “Asset retirement (decommissioning) obligations”, and Note 32 “Provisions”);

assessment of legal and tax contingencies, recognition and disclosure of contiagditiedi
(Note40 “Contingenci€ey;

assessment of deferred amee tax assstand liabilities (Note 3 “Significant accounting policies”,
section “Income tax”, and Note 18ncome tax”);

assessmeiaf environmentatemediatiorobligationgNote 32 “Provisions”andNote40“Contingencies”);
fair value measurements (Note 37 “Fair value of financial instruments”);

purchase price allocation to the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
(Note7 “Acquisition of subsidiaries and shares in joint operatigns”)

treatment of certain taxes as income taxes, production taxes or other taxesatmgnt of the tax on
additional income (Note 3 “Significant accounting policies”)
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4.  Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptiorgsontinued)

Significant estimates and assumptions affecting the reported amounts are those used in determinir
the economic recoverability of reserves.

Such estimates and assumptions may change over time when new information becomes available, e.g.:

X more detailednformation on reserves was obtained (either as a result of more detailed engineering
calculations or additional exploration drilling activities);

X  supplemental activities to enhance oil recovery were conducted;
X changes were made in economic estimates and assumptions (e.g. a change in pricing factors).

5. New and amended standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance ContrdERS 17 establishessingle framework for the
accounting for insuranceontracts and contains requirements for related disclosures. The new standard
replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracthe standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
Januaryl, 2021. TheCompany does not expect the standard to hawatarial impact on theonsolidated
financial statements.

In March 2018, the IASB issued a revised version of Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. In
particular, the revised version introduces new definitions of assets and liabilities, as well as amende
definitions of income and expenses. The new version is effective for annual periods beginning on or afte
Januan2020.The Company does not expect the revised version of Conceptual Frammaarke anaterial

impact on theconsolidated financial statemis.

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combingtmmasnendments enhance
definition of a business set out by the standard. The amendments are effective for acquisitions to occur on
after January 1, 2020; earlier apptioa is permitted.Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events after the date of first application the Company will not be affected by thes
amendments on the date of transition.

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to 1A% esentation of Financial Statemerasd IAS 8
AccountingPolicies Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errdree amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
introduce new definition of material. The amendments are effective on or after January 1, 2020; earliel
application is permitted. Theompany does not expect the amendments to have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

In September 2019, the IASB issued amendmentsR& 7 Financial instruments: DisclosurendIFRS 9
Financial instrunentsnamedinterest Rate Benchmark ReaforThe amendmentgrovide relieffrom certain
requirements of hedge accounting, as their fulfilment can lead to discontinuation of hedge accounting due t
uncertainty caused by the reform. The amendments are\effeator after January 1, 2020; earlier application

is permitted. Th&€€ompany does not expect the amendments to have a material impact on the consolidate
financial statements.

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of FIn&tei@ementsamed
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Nesurrent The amendmentdarify requirementsor classifiing
liabilities as current or neaurrent The amendments are effective on or after January 12; 288tlier
application is permitee TheCompany does not expect the amendments to have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements, as the Company already applies criteria set by the amendments.

The Company does not plan feairly adoption in respect of abereentionechewstandards and amendments
to existing standards to which this option is available.

33



Rosneft Oil Company

Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

6.  Capital and financial risk management
Capital management

The Compans capital management objectives are to ensure its ability to continue as a going concern and t
optimize the cost of capital in order to enhance value to shareholders. Total capital employed and financie
liabilities less liquid financial assets are ABRS measure

The Companys management performs a regular assessment of the financial liabiliidigéd financial
assets to capital employed ratio to ensure it meets the Corapaguirements to fulfil the Compdsy
commitments and to retain strong financial stability.

The Companys employed capital is calculated as the sum of equity attributablguity holders of Rosneft:
share capital, reserves, retained earnings andoatnolling interests; financial liabilities, which include long

and shorterm loans and borrowings, other financial liabilities, as reported in the consolidated balahce shee
less liquid financial assets, including cash and cash equivalents, othetesmofinancial assets and certain
longterm deposits. The Compdsyfinancial liabilities less liquid financial assets to capital employed ratio
was as follows:

As of Decenber 31,
2019 2018

Financial liabilities less liquid financial assets to capital employed ratio, 37.0% 37.9%

Financial risk management

In the normal course of busineshe Company is exposed to the following financial risks: market risk
(includingforeign currency risk, interest rate risk and commodity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company has introduced a risk management system and developed a number of procedures to measure, as
and monitor risks and select the relevant risk management techniques.

The Company has developed, documented and approved the relevant policies pertaining to market, credit a
liquidity risks and the use of derivative financial instruments.

Foreign currency risk

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and is exposed to foreign exchan
risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the U.S. dollar and euro. Foreign
exchange risk arises from assets, liabilities, commercial transactions andnfindesominated iforeign
currencies.

The carrying values of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are presented in tt
table below:

Assets Liabilities
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
US$ 1,351 864 (1,688) (1,969)
EUR 138 684 (330) (340)
Total 1,489 1,548 (2,018) (2,309)
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6. Capital and financial risk management (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Company seeks to identify and manage foreign exchange rate risk in a cosipeameanner, including

an integrated analysis of natural economic hedges, in order to benefit from the correlation between income ar
expenses. The Company chooses the currency in which to hold cash, such as the Russian ddilat br.S.

other currencyor shortterm risk management purposes.

The longterm risk management strategy of the Company may involve the use of derivativedarnative
financial instruments in order to minimize foreign exchange rate risk exposure.

Cash flow hedging of theCompany' s future exports

The Company designated certain U.S. dal@nominated borrowings as a hedge of the expected highly
probable U.Sdollar-denominated export revenue stream in accordance with 3HR&ancial Instruments

A portion of future mortily export revenues expected to be received in U.S. dollars was designated as a hedge
item. The nominal amounts of the hedged item and the hedging instruments were equal. To the extent that
change in the foreign currency rate impacts the fair valugedi¢dging instrument, the effects are recognized

in other comprehensive income or loss and then reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the hedge
item affects the profit or loss.

The Companys foreign currency risk management strategy iseidge future export revenue in the amount of

the net monetary position in U.S. dollars. The Company aligns the hedged nominal amount to the net moneta
position in U.S. dollars on a periodical bashs of December 312019 and December 31, 2018 hedge
instruments are not designated.

The impact of foreign exchange cash flow hedges recognized in other comprehensive income is set out belo

2019 2018
Before Income Net of Before Income Net of
incometax tax tax incometax tax tax

Total recognized in other
comprehensive (loss)/income ¢
of the beginning of the year (144) 29 (115) (290) 58 (232)

Foreign exchange effects

recognized during the year - - - - - -
Foreign exchange effects

reclassified to profit or loss 146 (29) 117 146 (29) 117
Total recognizedin other

comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year 146 (29) 117 146 (29) 117
Total recognizedin other

comprehensiveincome/(loss)as

of the end of the year 2 — 2 (144) 29 (115)

The schedule of the expected reclassification of the accumulated foreign exeéffmag®from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss, as of December 31, 2019, is presented below:

Year 2020 2021 Total

Reclassification 2 — 2
Income tax — — —
Total, net of tax 2 — 2
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Analysis of sensitivity of financial instrumentsto foreign exchange risk

The level of currency risk is assessed on a monthly basis using mathematical modeling methods (Monte Car
method), as well as sensitivity analysis and isnta@ed within the limits adopted in line with the Company
policy. The table below summarizes the impact on the Compamyome before income tax and equity of the
depreciation/(appreciation) of the U.S. dollar and ega&inst the Russianble

U.S.dollar effect Euro effect
2019 2018 2019 2018
Currency rate change #b 7.74% 13.97% 7.48% 13.64%
Gain/(loss) 34/(34) 85/(85) (6)/6 42/(42)
Equity (56)/56 (112)/112 11 (3)/3

Interest rate risk

Loans and borrowings raised at variable interassraxpose the Company to interest rate risk arising from
the possible movement of variable elements of the overall interest rate.

As of December 31, 2019, the Companyariable rate liabilities totaled RUB222 billion (net of interest
payable). The @Gmpany analyzes its interest rate exposure, including by performing scenario analysis to
measure the impact of an interest rate shift on annual income before income tax.

The table below summarizes the impact of a potential increase or decrease in interest rates on thésCompan
profit before tax, as applied to the variable element of interest rates on loans and borrowings.
Theincrease/decrease is basedt@management estimates of potential interest rate movements.

Increase/decrease Effect on income
in interest rate  before income tax

basis points RUB billion

2019 +4 1)
-4 1

2018 +5 (1)
-5 1

The sensitivity analysis is limited to variable rate loans and borrowings and is conducted with all other variable:
held constant. The analgss prepared with the assumption that the amount of variable rate liability outstanding
at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. The interest rate on variable rate loans &
borrowings will effectively change throughout the yeareisponse to fluctuations in market interest rates.

The impact measured through the sensitivity analysis does not take into account other potential changes
economic conditions that may accompany the relevant changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk

The Company controls its own exposure to credit risk. All external customers and their financial guarantors
other than related parties, undergo a creditworthiness check (including sellers of goods and services who &
on a prepayment basis). The Compamyforms an ongoing assessment and monitoring of the financial
position and the risk of default. As of DecemberZ119, management assestelimpact of credit riskif
materializedl on the Comparig net profitas low The Companys exposure to creditsk is limited to the
carrying value of financial assets recognized on the consolidated balance sheet, taking into consideration tl
information disclosed in Note 40 “Contingencies. Guarantees and indemnities issued”
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Credit risk (continued)

In addition, as part of its cash management and credit risk function, the Company regularly evaluates th
creditworthiness of financial and banking institutions where it deposits cash and performs trade finance
operations. The Company primarily has banking relationships with the Russian subsidiaries of large
international banking institutions and certain large Russian banks.

Liquidity risk

The Company has mature liquidity risk management processes coverinteaimomidterm and longerm
funding. Liquidity risk is controlled through maintaining sufficient reserves and the adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and loan funds. Management regularly monitors projected and actual cash flow
information, anbyzes the repayment schedules of the existing financial assets and liahititiesling
upcoming uraccrued interest payments, and performs annual detailed budgeting procedures.

The contractual maturities of the Companifjnancial liabilities are preated below:

Year ended December 312019 On demand <1 year lto5years >5years Total
Loans and borrowings and other

financial liabilities - 952 2,724 802 4,478
Lease liabilities - 32 68 188 283
Accounts payable to suppliers and

contractors - 544 - - 544
Salary and other benefits payable - 102 - - 102
Current operating liabilities of

subsidiary banks 91 352 38 - 481
Dividends payable - 1 - - 1
Other accounts payable - 19 - - 19
Derivative financial liabilities - 1 - - 1
Year ended December 312018 On demand <1 year lto5years >5years Total
Loans and borrowings and other

financial liabilities - 1,169 3,379 752 5,300
Finance lease liabilities - 9 19 18 46
Accounts payable to suppliers and

contractors - 452 - - 452
Salary and other befits payable - 88 - - 88
Current operating liabilities of

subsidiary banks 77 376 17 - 470
Dividends payable - 1 - - 1
Other accounts payable - 63 - - 63
Derivative financial liabilities - 33 - - 33
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7.  Acquisitions of subsidiaries and shares in joint operations
Acquisitions of 2019
Acquisition of an additional interest in LLCSibintek”

In December 2019 the Company acqui4@db132% shares in LLC “Sibintek” (“Sibintek”). The consideration
amounted to RUB 842 million. Increasing its share up to%&8ows the Company to obtain control over
“Sibintek” in accordance with IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statem&iksntek is a provider of
IT services.

As of December 31, 2019 the Company has not yet completed the assessment of the fair vaassetsthe
acquired and liabilities assumed. Allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of the assets acquired ar
liabilities assumed will be completed within 12 months from the acquisition date.

The following table summarizes the Compangrelimirary allocation of the purchase price to the fair value
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepayments and other current assets

Total current assets 1

[@] LSEC2N V)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investments in associates and joint ventures
Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 15
Other tax liabilities 2
Total current liabilities 17

N[N|N 01 O

N[

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 1
Total non-current liabilities 1
Total liabilities 18

Identifiable net assetsat fair value

Fair value of cash consideration transfdrre
Investment in associate
Consideration transferred to be included for the purpose of goodwiill

AW |

Excluding identifiable net assets (4)

Goodwill —

Cash flows arising on the acquisition:

Cash acquired as a résof the acquisition
Cash paid

=N

Net cash inflow 1
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7.  Acquisitions of subsidiaries and shares in joint operationgcontinued)

Acquisitions of 2019(continued)

Had the LLC “Sibintek” acquisition taken place at the beginning of the reporting period (January 1, 2019),
revenues and néncome of the combined entity would have been RUB 8{#lli8n and RUB807 billion,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2019.

As of January 13, 2020 the Company acquired the additional 1.5% of Sibintek shares for the amount a
RUB 25.5 min ircreasing the Compats/participation in Sibintek up to 100%.

Acquisition of 100% shares in the entities of “Petersburg Fuel Company” group

In July 2019 Company completed the acquisition of 100% shares in “Petersburg Fuel Cogmoapy”
(“PTK"). Fair vale of consideration amounted to RUB 13 billion, including contingent consideration. The
acquisition of PTK is in line with the Compdsystrategy aimed at developing the retail business and
expanding its presence in key regions of the country.

As of Decenber 31, 2019 the Company has not yet completed the assessment of the fair values of asset
acquired and liabilities assumed. Allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of the assets acquired ar
liabilities assumed will be completed within 12 munfrom the acquisition date.

Companys preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed is summarized in the table below:

ASSETS

Current assets

Accounts receivable and other assets 1
Total current asstes 1
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 17
Total non-current assets 17
Total assets 18
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1
Loans and borrowings and other liabilities 1
Total current liabilities 2
Non-current liabilities

Loans and borrowings and other liabilities 1
Deferred tax liabilities 2
Total non-current liabilities 3
Total liabilities 5
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 13
Total consideration transferred 13

Had the “PTK” acquisition taken place at the beginning of the reporting period (January 1, 2019), revenues
and net income of the combined entity for tiear ended December 31, 2019 would have been
RUB 8,680 billion and RUBBO06 billion, respectively.
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7.  Acquisitions of subsidiaries and shares in joint operations (continued)
Acquisitions of 208
Acquisition of interests in joint ventures with ExxonMobil

During the second quarter of 2018, following ExxonMobil withdrawal from several joint projéets,
Company completed acquisition of interests in the joint ventures with ExxonMobil and obtained control.

The following table summarizes the Compafinal allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed:

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1
Restricted cash 4
Other current assets 2
Total current assets 7
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2
Total non-current assets 2
Total assets 9
Identifiable net assets exclding intercompany liabilities and claims existing prior to the

acquisition 9
Fair value of cash consideration transferred —
Fair value of the Compahyinvestments in joint ventures 6
Changes in the Comparmiabilities as a result of acquisitiofiaontrol (11)
Total gain on bargain purchase 14

The gain on reneasurement of the Compagsynvestments previously held tine joint ventures to the fair
value at acquisition date amounted to RUB 5 billion and is included in Other income.

8.  Segment inbrmation

The Company determines its operating segments based on the nature of their operations. The performance
these operating segments is assessed by management on a regular basis. The Exploration and produc
segment is engaged in field exploration and the production of crude oil and natural gas. The Refining an
distribution segment is engaged in processing crude oil and other hydrocarbons into petroleum products,
well as in the purchase, sale and transportation of crude oil and petroleum products. Corporate and oth
unallocated activities are not part of any operating segment and include corporate activity, activities involvec
in field development, the maintenance of infrastructure and the functioning of the first two segments, as wel
as bankng and finance services, and other activities. Substantially all of the Coramgrations and assets

are located in the Russian Federation.

Segment performance is evaluated based on both revenues and operating income, which are measured on

same hsis as in the consolidated financial statements, but with intersegment transactions revalued at mark
prices.
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8.  Segment information(continued)

The performance of the operating segments in 2019 is shown below:

Corporate
Exploration and other
and Refining and unallocated
production  distribution activities ~ Adjustments Consolidated

Total revenues and equity share

in profits of associates and

joint ventures 4,781 8,641 172 (4,918) 8,676
Including: equity share in profits of

associates and jot ventures 64 32 4 — 100
Costs and expenses
Costs and expenses other than

depreciation, depletion and

amortization 2912 8,460 230 (4,918) 6,684
Depreciation, depletion and

amortization 560 113 14 - 687
Total costs and expenses 3472 8,573 244 (4,918) 7,371
Operating income 1,309 68 (72 — 1,305
Finance income - - 143 - 143
Finance expenses — - (227) — (227)
Total finance expenses — - (84) — (84)
Other income - - 11 - 11
Other expenses - - (153 - (153
Foreign exchange differences - - 64 - 64
Realized foreign exchange differen:

on hedge instruments — - (146) — (146)
Income before income tax 1,33 68 (380 - 997
Income tax expense (249 (7) 64 — (192
Net income 1,060 61 (316) — 805
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8.  Segnent information (continued)

The performance of the operating segments in 2018 is shown below:

Total revenues and equity kare in
profits of associates and joint
ventures

Including: equity share in profits of
associates and joint ventures

Costs and expenses

Costs and expenses other than
depreciation, depletion and
anortization

Depreciation, depletion and
amortization

Total costs and expenses

Operating income

Finance income
Finance expemrs

Total finance expenses

Other income

Other expenses

Foreign exchange differences

Realized foreign exchange differen:
on hedge instruments

Income before income tax

Income tax expense

Net income

Corporate
Exploration and other
and Refining and unallocated
production  distribution activities ~ Adjustments Consolidated

4,679 8,255 136 (4,832) 8,238

76 5 1 - 82

2,863 8,092 196 (4,832) 6,319
504 123 8 - 635
3,367 8,215 204 (4,832) 6,954
1,312 40 (68) - 1,284

- - 122 - 122
- - (290) - (290)
- - (168) - (168)

- - 49 - 49

- - (294) - (294)

- - 107 - 107

- - (146) - (146)

1,312 40 (520) - 832
(246) (8 71 - (183)
1,066 32 (449) - 649

Oll, gas, petroleum products and petrochemicals sales comprise the following (based on the country indicate

in the bill of ladng):

2019 2018

International sales of crude qgiletroleum products and petrochemicals —

nonCIS 6,126 5,791
International salesf crude oil and petroleum produet€IS,

other than Russia 335 357
Domestic sales of crude oil, petroleum producis petrochemicals 1,770 1,694
Sales of gas 259 234
Total oil, gas, petroleum products and petrochemicals sales 8,490 8,076

The Company is not dependent on any of its major customers or any one particular customer, as there is
liquid market for crudeil and petroleum products.
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9. Taxes other than income tax

Taxes other than income tax for the years ended December 31 comprise the following:

2019 2018
Mineral extraction tax 2,185 2,258
Excise tax 260 327
Property tax 40 42
Insurance contributions 75 67
Tax on additional income from production of hydrocarbons 96 -
Other 10 7
Total taxes 2,666 2,701

In accordance with the Federal Law No. F2BOn Amending Parts One and Two of the Tax Code of the
Russian Federatioanacted on July 19, 2018 ttexton additional income (hereinafter AIT) from production

of hydrocarbons was introduced for a number of oil fields starting from January 1, 2019. The AIT tax rate is
50% charged on the income from the hydrocarbons sales calculated as the differenge thetestimated

sales revenues and certain costs associated with the production, preparation and transportation
hydrocarbons. At the same time the MET for these oil fields is charged at a reduced rate. Several €ompany
oil fields have implemented thew tax regime starting from January 1, 2019.

10. Export customs duty

Export customs duty for the years ended December 31 comprises the following:

2019 2018
Export customs duty on oil sales 583 777
Export customs duty on petroleum products and petrodadssales 210 284
Total export customs duty 793 1,061

11. Finance income

Finance incoméor the years ended December 31 comprises the following:

2019 2018

Interest income on
Financial assetseasured
- at amortized cost 59 46
- at fair valuethrough other comprehensive income 24 14
- at fair value through profit or loss 7 9
Long-term advances issued (Note 28) 21 41
Total interest income 111 110
Decrease in allowance for expected credit losses on debt financial ass:

amortized cas 1 1
Change in fair value of financial assets measured at fair valoegth profit

or loss 21 2
Net gain from operations with derivative financial instruments 4 1
Gain from disposal of financial assets 1 3
Other finance income 5 5
Total finance income 143 122
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12. Finance expenses

Finance expensdsr the years ended December 31 comprise the following:

2019 2018
Interest expenses on
Loans and borrowings (111 (133)
Interest on the lease liability (6) (2)
Prepayment on lonterm oil and petr@um products supply
agreementéNote 33) (70 (91)
Other interest expenses (15 (8)
Total interest expenses (202 (234)
Increase in provision due to the unwinding afiscount (29 (19)
Increase in allowance for expected credit losses on debt fihasskts:
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (2) (4)
- at amortised cost ©)] 3)
Change in fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through
or loss - (12)
Net loss from operations with derivative financial instraise - a7
Other finance expenses (1) (1)
Total finance expenses (227) (290)
13. Other income and expenses
Other incomdor the years ended December 31 comprises the following:
2019 2018
Compensation payment for licenses from joint venture parties - 1
Insuranceecoveries 2 3
Gain on remeasurement of fair value of the Companyvestments in
joint ventures - 6
Gain on bargain purchase - 20
Gain on oudf-court settlement - 13
Other 9 6
Total other income 11 49
Other expensel®r the years eratl December 31 comprise the following:
2019 2018
Sale and disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible asse (16) (14)
Impairment of assets (74) (219)
Disposal of norproduction assets - (1)
Provision for legal claims - (13)
Social payrents, charity, financial aid (21 (23)
Other (42 (24)
Total other expenses (153 (294)
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13. Other income and expenses (continued)
Impairment of assets

In March 2019, the Government of the Russian Federation and oil companies prolonged the agreement on t
stabilization and development of the domestic petroleum products market. The agreement pegged smz
wholesale petroleum products prices to the set of ind&ptices provided for in the agreement. Furthermore,

the agreement limited ¢hpetroleunproducts retail prices growth rate to the forecasted average annualized
inflation level. Taking this into consideration during the preparation of the Interim condensed consolidated
financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company estimated theisaloé-

the distribution assets of the Refining and Distribution segment in a conservative scenario and, RUB 80 billior
of impairment loss was recognized in the interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the thre
monhs ended March 31, 2019. Key assumptions applied were as follows: petroleum products gross
distribution margin RUB 2.3thousando RUB 2.9thousand per tonne; forecasted sales voluntzssed on

the relevant business plan parameters; an€.it#%é p.adiscount rategerivedfrom the Companys weighted
average cost of capital adjusted to deterntiireepretax discount rate

During 2019 the Company continued to monitor the domestic petroleum products market. In June 2019 th
agreement between the Govesmhof the Russian Federation and oil companies on the stabilization and
development of the domestic petroleum products market expired. At the same time, on July 1, 2019 certai
changes were applied to the reverse excise compensation mechanism calghlatidrad a positive impact

on the compensation to the oil companies. These chtoggthemwith the established practice of the reverse
excise compensation mechanism application facilitated the contaiofrtbietdomestic wholesale prices and
hence thénigherthan previously forecasted distribution magyiexcept for thalistributionmargins achieved

by the entities located in Far East Federal DistActordingly,the Company estimated the value in use of

the distribution assets of the segment andiglrtreversed the impairment loss in the amount of
RUB 48 billion in these consolidated financial statements.

Key assumptions applied to the calculation of value in use

Discounted cash flows are most sensitive to changes in the following factors:

X Oil prices.For the purposes of thmpairmenttesing the Urals oil price was forecasted as follows:
RUB 3.7 thousand per barrel for 202022 and RUB 3.6 per barrel from 2023 onwards.

X Petroleum products gross distribution margirhe following average gross dtiibution
marginfor petroleum products was used in performed impairment test: ROB 3.5 thousand to
RUB 3.6 thousand per tonne in 2020 and onwards.

X Sales volumedg-orecasted sales volumes based on the business plan.

X The discount rateThe discount r& was derived frorthe Companis weighted average cost of capital
adjusted tdetermine the prax discount ratef 8.3% p.a.

Provided all otheassumptions stay constaifite decreasef the gross distribution margin will result in further
impairment.
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14. Personnel expenses

Personnel expenses for the years ended December 31 comprise the following:

2019 2018
Salary 294 271
Statutory insurance contributions 76 68
Expenses on nestatutory defined contribution plan 12 12
Other employee benefits 20 15
Total personnel expenses 402 366

Personnel expenses are included in Production and operating expenses, General and administrative exper
and Other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

15. Income tax

Income tax expenses for the years ended December 31 comprise the following:

2019 2018
Current income tax expense 184 175
Deferred tax expense due to the origination and reversal
of temporarydifferences 8 8
Total income tax expense 192 183

Rosneftis appointed athe responsibleakpayer of theonsolidated group of taxpayers (hereinafter “CGT")
As of December 31, 2019, in accordance with the terms of the agreement, CGT includes daisiteft
63 subsidiaries.

In 2019 and 2018, the Compang subsidiaries domiciled in the Russikederation applied the standard
Russian income tax rate of 20%, except for those wiegiienal tax reliefs applied The income tax rates
applicable for subsidiaries incorporated in forgigmsdictions arebased orocal regulationgnd vary from
0% to 34%
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15. Income tax (continued)

Temporary differences between these consolidated financial statements and tax records gave rise to t
following deferred income tax assets and liabilities:

Consolidated statement of
Consolidated balance sheet profit or loss for the years,

as of December 31, ended December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018

Shortterm accounts receivable 10 9 1 -
Property, plant and equipment 18 14 4 -
Shortterm accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 18 15 3 2
Loans and borrowingsd other financial

liabilities 1 4 3) (16)
Lease liabilities 29 5 24 5
Provisions 12 13 (1) 4
Tax loss carry forward 68 51 17 (7
Other 27 23 4 11
Less:offset withdeferred tax liabilities (150 (106) - -
Deferred tax assets 33 28 49 (1)
Inventories (20) (13) 3 -
Property, plant and equipment (644 (629) (21 ©)]
Right-of-use assets (32) (8) (24) (8)
Mineral rights (258) (264) 6 3
Intangible assets (5) (9) 4 4)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (8) (8) - -
Other (37 (12) (25 5
Less:offset withdeferred tax assets 150 106 - -
Deferred tax liabilities (844 (837) (57 (7)
Deferred income tax (expense)/benefit (8) (8)
Net deferred tax liabilities (817 (809)
Recognized in the consolidated balance

sheetas following
Deferred tax assets 33 28
Deferred tax liabilities (844 (837)
Net deferred tax liabilities (817 (809)

The reconciliation of net deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

2019 2018
As of January 1 (809) (788)
Adjustment on inigl applicationof IFRS 9 - 5
Deferred tax expensecognized in the consolidated statememtrofit or loss (8) (8)
Acquisition of subsidiaries and shares in joint operations (Note 7) ©)] (9)
Deferred taxncome/€xpensgrecognizedn other compreénsive income 9 (9)
As of December3l (811) (809)
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15. Income tax (continued)

The reconciliation betweeactual income tax expense and theoretical income tax expense calculated as
accounting profit multiplied by the 20% tax rate for the years ended Dec8mizas follows:

2019 2018

Income before income tax 997 832
Income tax at statutory rate of 20% 199 166
Increase/(decrease) resulting from:

Effect of change in unrecognized deferred tax assets (1) 13
Effect of income tax rates in other juristibns 3) -
Effect of special tax treatments 5 3
Effect of income tax relief (15 (24)
Effect of equity share in profits of associates and joint ventures (18) (14)
Effect of tax on intercompany dividends 3 6
Effect of tax on controlled investmts in foreign subsidiaries - 3)
Effect from goodwillimpairment - 36
Effect from acquisition of interests in joint ventures - (8)
Effect from sale of shares in subsidiaries - 1
Effect of prior period adjustments 1 (10)
Effect of nontaxable income andom-deductible expenses 21 17
Income tax 192 183

Unrecognized deferred tax assets in the consolidated balance sheet for the years ended Decemband1, 2019
2018amounted to RUB4 billion and RUB 72villion, respectively, related to unused tax lossesespect of
recognized deferred tax assets on tax losses carried forward management considers it probable that futt
taxable profits will be available for the Company against which these tax losses can be utilized.

The total amount of temporary differees associated with investment in subsidiaries, for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognized, amounteRWB 958 billion as of December 31, 2019.

According to Russian tax legislatiamdistributed profit of foreign subsidiaries recognized controlled
foreign companies may form an additional tax base for Rosaredtfor certain Russian subsidiaries holding
investments in foreign entitipdn particular, undistribute@019profits of controlled foreign companies are
included in the Comp®/'s tax base as of December 31, 2019 and recorded in the tax declaration. The
consequences of taxation of controlled foreign companies are considered in the determicati@noand
deferred tax liabilities.
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16. Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests include:

As of December31,2019 2019 As of December31,2018 2018
Non- Non-
Non- controlling Non- Non- controlling Non-
controlling interest controlling controlling interest controlling
interest as of theend  interestin interest as of theend interest in
(%) of the year  netincome (%) of the year  netincome
PJSC Bashneft Oil Company 39.67 248 19 39.67 240 30
LLC TaasYuriakh
Neftegazodobycha 49.90 121 30 49.90 119 24
JSC Vankorneft 49.90 120 29 49.90 143 38
JSC Verkhnechonskneftegaz 20.04 49 9 20.05 48 10
LLC Kharampurneftegas 49.00 35 1 49.00 24 -
LLC Sorovskneft 39.67 24 3 39.67 21 1
PJSC Ufaorgsintez 42.66 18 - 42.66 18 -
LLC BashneftDobycha 39.67 8 1 39.67 7 1
Non-controlling interests in
otherentities various 12 5 various 4 (4)
Total non-controlling interests 635 97 624 100

Otherchanges in norontrolling interests recognized in thensolidated statement of changes in shareholders
equityrelate mainly to contributions to assets of subsidiaries withcoatrolling irterests.

The summarized financial informationof subsidiatiieefore intercompany elimination)at have material
non-controlling interests is provided below. intercompany eliminations.

Summarized statement of PJSCBashneft LLC Taas-Yuriakh
profit or loss for 2019 Oil Company JSC Vankorneft Neftegazodobyche
Revenues 768 383 135
Costs and other income and expenses (711) (315) (60)
Income before income tax 57 68 75
Income tax expense (12) (11) (13)
Net income 45 57 62
incl. attributable to na-controlling interests 19 29 30
Summarized statemenbf PJSCBashneft LLC Taas-Yuriakh
profit or loss for 2018 QOil Company JSC Vankorneft Neftegazodobyche
Revenues 803 426 99
Costs and other income and expenses (707) (335) (41)
Income beforeincome tax 96 91 58
Income tax expense (19) (15) (10)
Net income 77 76 48
incl. attributable to norcontrolling interests 30 38 24
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16. Non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarized balance sheet PJSCBashneft LLC Taas-Yuriakh
as at December 312019 Oil Company JSC Vankorneft Neftegazodobyche
Current assets 916 70 41
Nortcurrent assets 730 256 223
Total assets 1,646 326 264
Current liabilities 713 41 9
Non-current liabilities 219 35 29
Equity 714 250 226
Total equity and liabiliti es 1,646 326 264
incl. nonrcontrolling interests 248 120 121
Dividends declared tnon-controlling interests 11 52 28
Summarized balance sheet PJSCBashneft LLC Taas-Yuriakh
as at December 312018 Oil Company JSC Vankorneft Neftegazodobyche
Current assets 849 70 33
Nortcurrent assets 768 302 223
Total assets 1,617 372 256
Current liabilities 698 43 8
Non-current liabilities 222 32 27
Equity 697 297 221
Total equity and liabilities 1,617 372 256
incl. nonrcontrolling interests 240 143 119
Dividends declared to necontrolling interests 11 35 9

17. Earnings per share

For the years ended December 31 basic and diéstedngs per share comprise the following:

Net income attributable to shareholdef&fosneft
Weightal average number of issued common shares outstanding (millic

Total basicand diluted earnings per share (RUB)

2019 2018
708 549
10,598 10,598
66.81 51.80

18. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As of December 31,

2019 2018
Cash on hand and in bank accounts in RUB 14 30
Cash on hand and in bank accounts in foreign currencies 92 572
Deposits 109 221
Other 13 9
Total cash and cash equivalents 228 832
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18. Cash and cash equivalentécontinued)

Cash accounts denominated in foreign currencies primarily comprise cash in U.S athollatso.

Deposits are interest bearing atmhominated in RUB antll.S. dollars

Restricted cash incled the obligatory reserve of subsidiary banks with the CBR in the amount of
RUB 7 billion and RUBG6 billion as of December 32019 and?018, respectively.

19. Other short-term financial assets

Other shorterm financialassets comprise the following:

As of December 31,

2019 2018
Financial assets afair value through other comprehensive itome
Bonds 158 162
Promissory notes 151 151
Shares 46 42
Loans granted under reverse repurchase agreements 55 56
Financial assets at amortized cost
Bonds 1 1
Loans issued 7 -
Loans issued to associataw joint ventures 19 2
Depositsand certificates of deposit 60 218
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Deposits 1 1
Bonds 1 -
Derivative financial instruments 2 -
Total other short-term financial assets 501 633

As of December 312019 and 2018 bonds andhotes atfair value through other comprehensive income
comprise the following:

2019 2018
Interest rate Date Interest rate Date
Type of security Balance p.a. of maturity Balance p.a. of maturity
May 20— May 2019 —

State and municipal bonds 21 2.512.66% March 2033 18 2.514.15% March 2033

February 2020 — January 2019
Corporate bonds 137 3.1514.25%  October 2029 144 2.9514.25% September 2032

January 2026 January 2019
Promissory notes 151 3.89.0% December 2023 151 3.89.0% Decembe 2023
Total 309 313

Investments in shares within other skherm financial assets are not held for trading and were designated to
the FVOCI category at initial application of IFRS 9 Finandiastruments or at their initial recognition
(in respetof shares acquired after January 1, 2018).

As of December 31, 2019, deposits and certificates of deposit are denominated mainlgoll&éissand earn
interest from 1.85% to 5.25% p.a.
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19. Other short-term financial assets (continued)

Financial asets at amortized cost are presented net of allowance for expected credit losses in the amount
RUB 3 billion as of December 31, 2019. The allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets at fai
value through other comprehensive income in tmeunt of RUB 8billion as of December 31, 2018
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Set out below is the movement in tidwance for expected credit losses on other dkamt financial assets

As of As of
January 1, Increasein Deaeasein Reclassifica December 31
2019 allowance  allowance tion 2019

Loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses:
- on financial assets at fair value throu

other comprehensive income 7 1 - - 8
- on financial assets at amortizeast 1 - - 1
Loss allowance at an amount equal to

lifetime expected credit losses:

- on financial assets at amortized cost 2 - - - 2

As of December 31, 20tBe Company has no financasets, which were credihpaired at initial recognition.

20. Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable include the following:

As of December 31,

2019 2018
Trade receivables 678 523
Bank loans to customers 130 124
Other accounts receivable 37 51
Total 845 698
Allowance for expeted credit losses (95) (56)
Total accounts receivable, net of allowance 750 642

As of December 31, 20Ehd2018accounts receivable were not pledged as collateral for loans and borrowings
provided to the Compangxcept as discusseadNote 30.
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20. Accounts receivable (continued)

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses on accounts receivable:

As of As of
January 1, Increase Decrease December 31,
2019 in allowance in allowance 2019
Allowance at an amount equal to-a@nth
expected credibisses on trade receivables 37 20 (20) 47
Allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses on trade receivables - 27 - 27
Allowance for expected credit losses on othe
accounts receivable 19 10 (8) 21
Total 56 57 (18) 95

Due tooverallhigh creditquality andshorttermnatureof trade receivables, the allowance for expected credit
lossesfor significant counterparties is determined based 2month expected credit losses. The Company
has no trade receivables tare credit impaired upn initial recognition.

Allowance at the amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses was recognized during the reporting perio
due to occurrence of credit impairment of an asset, which was not credit impaired upon initial recognition.
21. Inventories

Inventories comprise the following:

As of December 31,

2019 2018
Crude oil and gas 135 91
Petroleum products and petrochemicals 186 205
Materials and supplies 117 97
Total inventories 438 393

Petroleum products and petrochemicals include thasigriiged both for sale and for own use.
For the years ended December 31.:

2019 2018

Cost of inventories recognized as an expense during the period 1,680 1,306
The cost of inventories recognized as expense during the period is included in Produttaperating

expenses, Cost of purchased oil,,getroleum products and refining costs and General and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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22. Prepayments and other current assets
Prepayments and other current assetsprise the following:

As of December 31,

2019 2018
Value added tax and excise receivable 183 221
Prepayments to suppliers: 209 217
- Current portion of longerm prepayments issued 64 148
Settlements with customs 34 41
Profit and other tax paymés 35 20
Other 8 11
Total prepayments and other current assets 469 510

Settlements with customs primarily represent export duties related to the export of crude oil and petroleun

products (Note 10).

23. Property, plant and equipment

Corporate
and other
Exploration Refining and unallocated
and production  distribution activities Total

Cost as of Januaryl, 2018 8,719 2,172 139 11,030
Depreciation, depletion and impairment losse

of Januaryl, 2018 (2,628) (478) (44) (3,150)
Net book value as oflanuary 1, 2018 6,091 1,694 95 7,880
Prepayments for property, plant and equipme

as of January 1, 2018 9 7 27 43
Total as of January 1, 2018 6,100 1,701 122 7,923
Cost
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and shares in joir

operations (Note 7) 2 - 2 4
Additions 995 130 5 1,130
Including capitalized expenses on loans and

borrowings 143 48 - 191
Disposals and other movements (61) 14 (8) (55)
Foreign exchange differences 129 31 3 163
Cost of asset retirement (decommissioning)

obligations (27) - — (27)
As of December31, 2018 9,757 2,347 141 12,245
Depreciation, depletion and impairment losse
Depreciation and depletion charge (519) (113) (8) (640)
Disposals and other movements 40 (14) 3 29
Impairment of assets a7 (12) - (29)
Foreign exbange differences (59) (3) (1) (63)
As of December31, 2018 (3,183) (620) (50) (3,853)
Net book value as of December 31, 2018 6,574 1,727 91 8,392
Prepayments for property, plant and equipme

as of Decembe31, 2018 9 15 29 53
Total as of Decembei1, 2018 6,583 1,742 120 8,445
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23. Property, plant and equipment(continued)

Corporate
and other
Exploration Refining and unallocated
and production  distribution activities Total

Cost as of Januaryl, 2019 9,709 2,334 154 12,197
Depreciation, depletion and impairment losse

of Januaryl, 201 (3,179 (598 (54) (3,828
Net book value as of January 1, 2 6,533 1,736 100 8,369
Prepayments for property, plant and equipme

as of January 1, 201 9 15 29 53
Total as of January 1, 202 6,542 1,751 129 8,422
Cost
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and shares in joir

operationgNote 7) - 17 5 22
Additions 874 112 8 9n
Including capitalized expenses on loans and

borrowings 130 45 - 175
Disposals and other mements (43) (6) (14) (63)
Foreign exchange differences (94) (29 (2) (125)
Cost of asset retirement (decommissioning)

obligations 94 - — 94
As of December31, 2019 10,540 2,428 151 13,110
Depreciation, depletion and impairment losse
Depreciatiorand depletion charge (556) (95) 9) (660)
Disposals and other movements 19 6 6 31
Impairment of assets 2 (61) - (63
Foreign exchange differences 43 5 2 50
As of December31, 2019 (3,672 (743 (55) (4,470)
Net book value as of December 31, 2019 6,868 1,685 96 8,649
Prepayments for property, plant and equipme

as of Decembe31, 2019 17 13 34 64
Total as of Decembei1, 2019 6,8% 1,698 130 8,713

The cost of construction in progress included in property, plant and equipment wa®,&10billionand
RUB 2,351 billion as of December 31, 2048d 2018, respectively.

Cost, Depreciation, depletion and impairment losses, Net book value as of January 1, 2019 include the effec
of the initial applicatiorof IFRS 16LeasegNote 24).

As of January 1, 2019, certain items of property, plant and equipment were reallocated between segmen

Exploration and production, Refining and distribution and Corporate and other activities due to clarification
of the nature of their use.
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23. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The depreciation charge includes depreciation which was capitalized as part of the construction cost c
property, plant and equipment and the cost of inventory in the amount of RUB 14 billion and RUB&S8 bill
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Company capitalized RUB75 billion (including RUB 158 billion in capitalized interest expense) and
RUB 191 billion (including RUB 147 billion in capitalized interest expense) of exgeis loans and
borrowings in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

During 2019and 2018the Company received government grants for capital expenditures in the amount of
RUB 8 billion and RUB 10billion, respectively. Grants are accounted for as a reduction dfcadin the
Exploration and production segment.

The weighted average rates used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization ar
8.55%and 11.63% p.a. iB019 and 2018, respectively.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploraion and evaluation assets included in the Exploration and production segment, including mineral rights
to unproved properties, comprise the following:

2019 2018

Cost as of Januaryl 397 386
Impairment losses as of Januani (A7) —
Net book value as bJanuary 1 380 386
Cost

Capitalized expenditures 53 42
Reclassified to development assets (14 (43)
Expensed 4) (1)
Foreign exchange differences (12) 13
As of December31 420 397
Impairment losses

Accrual of impairment reserve (1) a7
Foreign exchange differences 3 —
As of December3l (15) (17)
Net book value as of December 31 405 380

Provision for asset retirement (decommissioning) obligations

The cost ofasset retirement (decommissioning) obligations was RUBbilbdn and RUB 80billion as of
December 31, 2019 ara18, respectively, and included in Property, plant and equipment.
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24. Lease agreements

Set out below is the movement in the rigiftuseassets for 2019:

Corporate
and other
Exploration Refining and unallocated
and production  distribution activities Total

Cost as of Januaryl, 2019 67 82 37 186
Depreciation and impairment losses as of

Januaryl, 2019 (27) (14) (1) (42)
Net book value as of January 1, 2019 40 68 36 144
Prepayments for lease agreements

as of Januy 1, 2019 — — - -
Total as of January 1, 2019 40 68 36 144
Cost
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and shares in joir

operations (Note 7) - - - -
Additions 15 5 28 48
Revaluation of right of use assets - - - -
Disposals and other movements 2 2 D (5)
Foreign exchange differences Q) - - D
Cost of asset retirement (decommissioning)

obligations - - — —
As of December31, 2019 79 85 64 228

Depreciation and impairment losses
Depreciation charge (15 (8) 4 (27)
Disposals and other mements 1 (2 1 0
Impairment of assets - -

Foreign exchange differences 1 - — 1
As of December31, 2019 (40 (24 4 (68
Net book value as of December 31, 2019 39 61 60 160
Prepayments for lease agreements as of

DecembeBl1, 2019 - - - -
Total as of DecembeB1, 2019 39 61 60 160

Oneoff increase in norurrent assets and financial liabilities due to recognition of leases previously classified
as an operating lease applying IAS 17 totaled RUB 103 billion as of January 1, 2019.

For leases @wviously classified as finance leases applying IAS 17 Leases, the carrying amount of 4bfe right
use assets as of January 1, 2019 is the carrying amount of the lease assets as of December 31, 2018 meas
applying IAS 17. Previously recognized financade assets in the amount of RUB 23 billion (net book value)

as of January 1, 2019 were reclassified to Righise assets from Property, plant and equipment.
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Right-of-use assets as of January 1, 2019 ialslode RUB 18 billion of theland leaseholdights acquired
through business combinatioasdpreviously recognized within Intangible assg@se Note 25)

Set out below is the movement of lease liabilities for 2019

As of Foreign As of
January 1, Increase Interest exchange December 31,
2019 in obligations expense differences Payments 2019
Lease liabilities 130 46 12 (5) (37 146

Amount of lease liabilities as of January 1, 2019 stated above includes previously recognized finance leas
liabilities applyinglAS 17 in the amount of RUB 27 billion.

Within the income statement for 2019 the following expenses were recognized: expenses related to land leas
for exploration and production purposes as well as leases of wells (RUlBP), shortterm lease expenses
(RUB 7 billion), low value lease expenses and +hesse components of leases (RUBillion). Variable lease
payment expenses for the period were not material.

The range ofliscount rates applied to lease liabilities recognised in the statememamdiéil position at the
date of initial application as well as at the year end is presented below for the main contracting currencies:

As of January 1,2019 As of December 31, 2019

Ruble 7.98-8.70% 6.467.77%
USdollar 4.98-5.65% 2.665.11%

The totalcash outflow under leases, including cash payments under contracts outside the scope of IFRS 1
(exceptions and practical expedients listed above) amounted to Rhiliek8in 2019.

The future cash outflows to which the tenant is potentially exp@sedwhich are not reflected in the
assessment of lease obligations (variable payments, leases that have not yet begun, etc.) are not significant
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Intangible assets and goodwill comprise the following:

Other Total
Leasehold land intangible intangible
Rights assets assets Goodwill
Costas of Januaryl, 2018 34 70 104 265
Amortization as of January1, 2018 (15) (14) (29) —
Net book value as of Januaryl, 2018 19 56 75 265
Cost
Additions - 15 15 -
Acquisition d subsidiaries (Note 7) - - - -
Disposals - 4) (4) (180)
Foreign exchange differences 1 3 4 —
As of December31, 2018 35 84 119 85
Amortization
Amortization charge Q) (14) (15) -
Disposal of amortization - 2 2 -
Foreign exchange differences (1) (1) (2) —
As of December31, 2018 a7 (27) (44) —
Net book value as of Decembe31, 2018 18 57 75 85
Costas of January1, 2019 - 84 84 85
Amortizatio n of January 1, 2019 — (27) (27) —
Net book value as oflanuary 1, 2019 — 57 57 85
Cost
Additions - 23 23 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 7) - 5 5 -
Disposals - (D) (@D} -
Foreign exchange differences — (1) (1) -
As of December31, 2019 - 110 110 85
Amortization
Amortization charge - (15) (15) -
Disposal of amortization - 1 1 -
Foreign exchange differences — — - -
As of December31, 2019 — (41 (41 -
Net book value as of DecembeBl, 2019 - 69 69 85

Cost, amortizaton and impairment losses, Net book value as of January 1, 2019 include the effects of the initi
applicaton of IFRS 16 Leasddlote 24).

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Goodwill
Exploration and production 85 85
Total 85 85

The Company performs its annual goodwill impairment test as of October 1 of each year. The impairment tes
was carried out &he beginning of the fourth quarter of each year using the data that was appropriate at tha
time. Due to the excess of value in use over identified net assets for the Exploration and production segme
no impairment of goodwill was identified in 2019.
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The Company estimates the value in use of the operating segments using a discounted cash flow model. Fut
cash flows are adjusted for risks specific to each segment and discounted using a rate that reflects curre
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to each segment, for which the futu
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

The Companys business plan, approved by the ComparBoard of Directors, is the primary souroe
information for the determination of the operating segmesatisie in use. The business plan contains internal
forecasts of oil and gas production, refinery throughputs, revenues, operating and capital expenditures. As an init
step in the preparatioof these plans, various assumptions, such as concerning crude oil and natural gas price:
ruble exchange rate and cost inflation rates, are set. These assumptions take into account the current pric
U.S. dollar and RUB inflation rates, other macroeaoimfactors and historical trends, as well as market volatility.

In determining the value in use for the operating segments, tweareperiod cash flows calculated on the
basis of the Company managemerforecasts are discounted and aggregated witkateentsterminal
value. The use of a forecast period longer than five years originates from the iisdagémage investment
cycle. For the calculation of the terminal value of the Comigaaggments in the pestitlook period the
Gordon model is used.

Key assumptions applied to the calculation of value in use
Discounted cash flows are most sensitive to changes in the following factors:

X Oil prices. For the purposes of timapairmenttesing the Urals oil price was forecasted as follows:
RUB 3.7 thousad per barrel for 2022022 and RUB 3.6 per barrel from 2023 onwards.

X Production volumesEstimated production volumes were based on detailed data for the fields and take
into account the field development plans approved by management through therhoptanning
process.

X  The discount rateThe discount rate calculation is based on the Conipamgighted average cost of
capital adjusted to reflect the piax discount rate and the discount rate was 9.2% p.a.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Company did not have any intangible assets with indefinite useft
lives. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018 no intangible assets have been pledged as collateral.

26. Other long-term financial assets
Other longterm financialassets net of future credit lossesnprie the following:

As of December 31,

2019 2018
Financial assets afair value through other comprehensive income
Stocks and shares 21 18
Financial assets at amortized cost
Bonds 26 28
Loans granted 18 18
Loansgrantedio associateandjoint ventures 12 31
Deposits and certificates of deposit 20 23
Other accounts receivable 10 11
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Deposits 122 110
Total other long-term financial assets 229 239
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26. Other long-term financial assetgcontinued)

Bank deposits of the Company are platedubles, US dollars and euros at interest rates ranging from 1.5%
to 8.75% p.a.

Bonds mainly includéederal loan bonds
No longterm financial assets were pledged as collateral as of December 3hn202@18.

Set out below is the movement in talowance for expected credit losses on other-teng financial assets:

As of As of
January 1, Increase Decrease Reclas December 31
2019 in allowance in allowance sification 2019
Allowance at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses:
- on financial assets at amortized cost 1 - - - 1
Allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses:
- on financial assets at amortized cost 14 2 (1) - 15

As of Decembe31,2019the Company has no financadsets, which were credlihpaired at initial recognition.

27. Investments in associates and joint ventures

Investments in associatasd joint venturesomprise the following:

Company's
shareas of

Name of investee Country activity 2019, % 2019 2018
Joint ventures
PJSC NGK Slavneft Russia Exploration and

production 49.% 175 167
Kurdistan Pipeline Company Pte. Ltd Singapore Logistics 60.00 123 -
Petromonagas S.A. Venezuela Exploration and

production 40.00 24 77
Taihu Ltd (OJSC Udmurtneft) Cyprus Exploration and

production 51.00 75 58
Messoyahaneftegaz JSC Russia Exploration and

production 50.00 50 37
Petrovictoria S.A. Venezuela Exploration and

production 40.00 28 31
National Oil Consortium LLC Venezuela Exploration and

production 80.00 25 30
TZK Vnukovo Russia Distribution 50.00 17 17
Arktikshelfneftegaz JSC Russia Exploration and

production 50.00 2 2
SIA ITERA Latvija Latvia Holding company 66.00 2 3
Associates
Nayara Energy Limited India Refiningand

distribution 49.13 219 251
Purgaz CJSC Russia Exploration and

production 49.00 27 34
Petrocas Energy International Ltd Cyprus Logistics 49.00 10 11
Nizhnevartovskaya TPP JSC Russia Power plant 25.01 3 4
Other various Various 23 13
Total associates and joint ventures 803 735
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27. Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

In respect of associates and joint ventures, where the Cotsprgre exceed®%, the Company does not

have an ability to solely direct the&levant activities.

The equity share in profits/(losses) of associates and joint ventures comprises the following:

Messoyahaneftegaz JSC
Petromonagas S.A.

PJSC NGK Slavneft

Taihu Limited

Kurdistan Pipeline Company Pte. Ltd.
Other

Total equity share in profits of associates and

joint ventures

Company's
shareas of Share in income/(loss)
December 31, of equity investees

2019 % 2019 2018
50.00 30 31
40.00 5 19
49.96 8 11
51.00 19 10
60.00 25 -
various 13 11
100 82

The unrecognized share of losses of associates and joint ventures comprises the following:

Name of investee

As of December31,

2019

2018

LLC Veninneft

LLP Adai Petroleum Company
Boqueron S.A.

Petroperija S.A.

AN 00N

HOOWON

Total unrecognized share of losses of associates anéhj ventures 16

Summarizedihancial information of significant associates and joint ventures as of December 3Bn2019

2018 is presented below:

20

As of December 31,

Nayara Energy Limited 2019 2018

Current assets 133 162
Non-current assets 369 396
Total assets 502 558
Current liabilities (195) (242)
Non-current liabilities (278) (284)
Total liabilities (473) (526)
Net assets 29 32
The Companys share, % 49.13 49.13
The Compans total share in net assets 14 16
Goodwill 205 235
Total 219 251
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Nayara Energy Limited 2019 2018
Revenues 923 912
Finance expenses (26) (27)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization (23) (16)
Other expenses (873) (860)
Income before tax 1 9
Income tax 8 (4)
Net income 9 5
The Companys share, % 49.13 49.13
The Company s total share in net income 4 2

The currencyranslation effect amounted tdassof RUB 32billion and an incomeof RUB 25billion for the
years ended December 2019and2018 respectively, which was included in foreign exchange differences

in the translation of foreign operations in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income for 201
and 2018. The Companis share of other comprehensive loss amounted to RUB 4 billion for Z8&9.
Companys share of contingent liabilities as of December 31, 20d8unted t&RUB 23 hillion.

As of December 31,

PJSC NGK Slavneft 2019 2018
Current assets 100 93
Non-current assets 513 473
Total assets 613 566
Current liabilities (88) (63)
Non-current liabilities (175) (168)
Total liabilities (263) (231)
Net assets 350 335
The Companys share, % 49.96 49.94
The Company s total share in net assets 175 167
PJSC NGK Slavneft 2019 2018
Revenues 316 314
Finance income 1 -
Finance expenses (12) (9)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization (48) 47
Other expenses (232) (228)
Income before tax 25 30
Income tax (9) (8)
Net income 16 22
The Companys share, % 49.96 49.94
The Company s total share in net income 8 11
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As of December 31,

Messoyahaneftegaz JSC 2019 2018
Current assets 27 24
Non-current assets 204 180
Total assets 231 204
Current liabilities (115) (19)
Other nonrcurrent liabilities (16) (110)
Total liabilities (131) (129)
Net assets 100 75
The Companys share, % 50.00 50.00
The Company s total share in net assets 50 37
Messoyahaneftegaz JSC 2019 2018
Rewenues 141 126
Finance expenses (7) (6)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization (16) (12)
Other expenses (47 (33
Income before tax 71 75
Income tax (12) (13)
Net income 59 62
The Companys share, % 50.00 50.00
The Company s total share in net inome 30 31

In 2019 the Company received RUB 17 billion of dividends.

As of December 31,

Kurdistan Pipeline Company Pte. Ltd. 2019 2018

Current assets 17 1
Non-current assets 196 —
Total assets 213 1
Current liabilities (8) (1)
Other nonrcurrent liabilities - —
Total liabilities (8) (D
Net assets 205 —
The Companys share, % 60.00 60.00
The Company s total share in net assets 123 —
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Kurdistan Pipeline Company Pte. Ltd. 2019 2018

Revenues 11 1
Finance income 44 -
Finance expenses - -
Depreciation, depletion and amortization - -
Other expenses 2 1)
Income before tax 53 -
Income tax — —
Net income 53 —
The Companys share, % 60.00 60.00
The Company s total share innet income 32 —

In January 2019 part of tHeng-term advances issued in 2017 amounting to RUB b#&n (including
accrued interestyas reclassified as the Compasgapital contribution to the joint venture, which operates
the oil pipeline in IragKurdistan.The currency translation effect amounted to a loss of RUMIlidn for the

year ended December 31, 2019 was included in foreign exchange differences in the translation of foreig
operations in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income for 2019. lhe2C@npany

received RUB 19 billion oflividends

As of December 31,

Taihu Ltd 2019 2018
Current assets 60 67
Non-current assets 118 80
Total assets 178 147
Current liabilities (20) (29
Other norcurrent liabilities (11) (15)
Total liabilities (32) (34)
Net assets 147 113
The Companys share, % 51.00 51.00
The Company s total share in net assets 75 58
Taihu Limited 2019 2018
Revenues 145 156
Finance income 4 3
Finance expenses (2 (1)
Depreciation, depletinand amortization (6) (5)
Other expenses (110) (113)
Income before tax 31 40
Income tax (6) (9
Net income 25 31
The Companys share, % 51.00 51.00
The Company s total share in net income 13 16
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The currency translation effect amounted to a loss of RUB 2 billion for the year ended December 31, 2019 wa
included in foreign exchange differences in the translation of foreign operations in the consolidated statemer
of other comprehensivaé¢ome for 2019.

28. Other non-current non-financial assets

Other noneurrent norfinancial assets comprise the following:

As of December 31,

2019 2018
Long-term advances issued 169 293
Other 2 2
Total other non-current non-financial assets 171 295

Longterm advances issued represent primarily advance payments under contracts for future crude oil purchas

29. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities comprise the following:

As of December 31,

2019 2018

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable to suppliers and contractors 544 452
Current operating liabilities of subsidiary banks 438 451
Salary and other benefits payable 102 88
Dividends payable 1 1
Other accounts payable 19 63
Total financial liabili ties 1,104 1,055
Non-financial liabilities

Shortterm advances received 58 75
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,162 1,130

Trade and other payables are rotrerest bearing.
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Loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities comprise the following:

As of December 31,

Currency 2019 2018

Long-term
Bank loans RUB 397 423
Bank loans USS$, euro 745 921
Bonds RUB 548 461
Eurobonds uUs$ 157 177
Borrowings RUB 111 77
Other borrowings RUB 503 704
Other borrowings Uss 643 691
Less: current portion of lonrterm loans and borrowings (315 (202)
Total long-term loans and borrowings 2,789 3,252
Lease liabilities 146 27
Other longterm financial liabilities 116 139
Less: current portion of lonterm lease liabilities (18) (5)
Total long-term loans and borrowings and other financial

liabilities 3,033 3,413
Short-term
Bank loans RUB 87 326
Bank loans USS$, euro 36 16
Borrowings RUB 1 -
Borrowings Uss 7 -
Other borrowings RUB 159 209
Other borrowings USs$ 3 25
Current portion of longterm loans and borrowings 315 202
Total short-term loans and borrowings and current portion

of long-term loans and borrowings 608 778
Current portion of longterm lease liabilities 18 5
Other shorterm financial liabilities 168 162
Shortterm liabilities related to derivative financial instrume 1 33
Total short-term loans and borrowings and other

financial liabilities 795 978
Total loans and borrowings andother financial liabilities 3,828 4,391
Long-term loans and borrowings
Longterm bank loans comprise the following:

Maturity As of December 31,

Currency Interest rate p.a. date 2019 2018
uUss$ LIBOR + 1.00%- LIBOR + 3.50% 2020-2029 743 915
EUR EURIBOR + 0.35%-2.00% 20202023 2 6
RUB CBKR + 0.50%—8.50% 20202024 397 423
Total 1,142 1,344
Debt issue costs - -
Total long-term bank loans 1,142 1,344

Longterm bank loans from a foreign bank denominated in U.S. dollars are pdiyi@ecured by oil export
contracts. If the Company fails to make timely debt repayments, the terms of such contracts normally provid
the lender with the express right of claim to contractual revenue in the amount of the late loan repayment:
which the puchaser generally remits directly through transit currency accounts with the lender banks. The
outstanding balance of Accounts receivable arising from such contracts amounts to RUB 32 billion anc
RUB 28 billion as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respegtigal is included in Trade receivables.
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Long-term loans and borrowings(continued)

Interestbearing RUB denominated bearer bonds in circulation comprise the following:

Date of  Date of Total volume in Coupon As of December 31,

Security ID issue maturity  RUB billions (%) 2019 2018
Bonds 04,05 10.2012 10.2022 20 7.90% 20 20
Bonds 07,08 03.2013 03.2023 30 7.30% 31 31
Bonds 06°,09°,1¢° 06.2013 05.2023 40 7.00% 1 1
SE Bonds i HO5®  ; HOG® 12.2013 12.2023 40 6.65%° 10 10
SE Bonds T H ; HO7 02.2014 02.2024 35 8.90% 36 36
SE Bonds H ‘H i H4
; H09 12.2014 11.2024 65 9.40% 55 55
SE Bond$ T H s HLO
T H T H s HL3
i H14 12.2014 11.2024 160 9.409% - -
SE Bond$ T H ; HL6
T H ;24 12.2014 12.2020 400 7.85% - -
SE Bond$ T H D H ; K20
H ' H T 23
T H ; K26 01.2015 01.2021 400 8.509%° - -
SE Bond$ Jo1 12.2016 11.20B 600 6.60% - -
SE Bonds J02 12.2016 12.2026 30 9.39% 30 30
SE Bonds J03 12.2016 12.2026 20 9.50% 20 20
SE Bonds Jo4 05.207 04.2027 40 8.65% 41 41
SE Bonds J05 05.207> 05.2025 15 8.60%% 15 15
SE Bond$ J D7 07.207  07.2027 266 8.509%¢ - -
SE Bond$ J08 10.2017  09.2027 100 7.10%° - -
SE Bond$ J D2 12.207  11.2027 600 6.60% - -
SE Bonds J03 12.207  12.2027 30 7.75% 30 30
SE Bonds Jo4 02.20B 02.2028 50 7.509% 51 51
SE Bonds J05 03.20B 02.2028 20 7.30 % 21 21
SE Bonds JOo D7 04.2018 03.2029 30 8.70% 31 -
SE Bonds J08 07.2019 07.2029 25 7.95% 26 -
SE Bonds J09 10.201¢ 10.2029 25 7.10% 25 -
Bonds of subsidiary banks:
SE Bonds Jo1 102017 102020+ 10 8.509%¢ 10 10
SE Bonds J02 022018 072021¢ 5 7.809% 5 5
SE Bonds J03 03.2018 03.2024 5 8.85%° 5 -
SE Bonds ; HOZ® 08.2014 08.2034 3 0.51% - -
SE Bonds : HO3P 07.2013 06.2035 4 0.519% - -
SE Bonds T H 09.2015 08.2035 5 0.519% - -
SE Bonds s H 10.2015 09.2035% 4 0.519% 1 1
SE Bonds T H 11.2015 10.2035 1 0.51% - -
SE Bonds T H 06.2016 06.2036 5 0.519% - -
Convertible Bonds k01l 02.2077°* 02.2032 69 0.51% 2 2
PJSCBashneft SE Bonds:
Bonds 048 02.2012 02.2022 10 7.009% - -
Bonds 06, 08 02.2013 01.2023 15 7.709% 15 15
Bonds 07, 09 02.2013 01.2023 15 8.85% 16 16
SE Bonds T H ; HO8 05.2016 04.2026 15 10.90% 16 16
SE Bonds ; HO9 10.2016 10.2026 5 9.30% 5 5
SE Bonds ; H10 12.2016 12.2026 5 9.509% 5 5
SE Bonds 001RO0O1R 12.2016 12.2024 10 9.50% 10 10
SE Bonds 001R02R 12.2016 12.2023 10 9.509% 10 10
SE Bonds 001RO3R 01.207 01.2024 5 9.40% 5 5
Total long-term RUB bonds 548 461

Early repurchase at the request of the bond holdetallowed.

Coupon payments every three months.

Coupon payments at the maturity day.

On the reporting date these issues are fully or partially used as an instrument for other borrowings under repurclrasimgopgradions.
For the coupon period effective as of December 31, 2019.

As of December 31, 2019 part of issue early repurchased.

o 0 A W N P

68



Rosneft Oil Company

Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)
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Long-term loans and borrowings (continued)

All of the bonds, excluding certain issues, allow early repurchase at the request of the bond holder as setin t
respective offering documents. In addition, the issuer, at anyatichat its discretion, may purchase/repay the
bonds early with the possibility of subsequently placing the bonds in the market. Such purchase/repayment
the bonds does not constitute an early redemption.

Corporate Eurobonds comprise the following:

Coupon rate As of December 31,

(%) Currency Maturity 2019 2018
Eurobonds (Series 2) 4.199% uUss$ 2022 125 141
Eurobonds (Series 8) 7.250% (USH 2020 32 36
Total long-term Eurobonds 157 177

In 2019the Company continued to settle other ld@gn borowings under repurchasing agreement operations
and entered into new transactions. AsDafcember 31, 2019, the liabilities of the Company under those
operationsamounted to the equivalent of RUB 1,148lion at the CBR official exchange rate as of
Decemier 31, 2019. The Compats/own corporate bonds were used as an instrument fordpesations

The Company is obliged to comply with a number of restrictive financial and other covenants contained in
several of its loan agreements. Such covenants mchaintaining certain financial ratios.

As of December 31, 20hd December 31, 201l Company was in compliance with all restrictive financial
and other covenants contained in its loan agreements.

Short-term loans and borrowings

In 2019 the Company drew down funds under stesrh fixed and floating rates loans from Russian and
foreign banks

In 2019 the Company continued to mégtobligations in relation to other shaerm borrowings in the form

of repurchase operations and entered into nams#ictionsAs of December 31, 2019 the liabilities of the
Company under those transactions amounted to the equivalent of RUBIlliGR (at the CBR official
exchange rate as of DecemiBdr, 2019). Own corporate bonds were used as an instrument for those
transactions.

In 2019 the Company was current on all payments under loan agreements and interest.payments

Shortterm liabilities related to derivative financial instruments mainly include liabilities related to cross
currency rate swaps.

The Company enters into cressrrency rate swaps to sell US$. The transactions balance the currency of
revenues and liabilities and reduce the overall interest rates on borrowings.
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Liabilities related to derivative financial instruments

The crosscurrency rate swaps are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value. The measureme
of the fair value of the transactions is based on a discounted cash flow model and consensus féoesigsis o
currency rates. The consensus forecasts include forecasts of the major international banks and agencies. -
Bloomberg system is the main information source for the model.

In 2019 the Company settled derivative financial instruments opened in 2014 for a nominal amount of
US$ 1,010 million (RUB 62 billion at the CBR official exchange rate as of December 31, 2019)

Reconciliation otthanges in liabilities arising frofimancing activities:

Short-term
liabilities
Other Other related to
Long-term  Short-term long-term short-term derivative
loans and loans and Lease financial financial financial
borrowings  borrowings liabilities liabilities liabilities instruments Total
As of January 1, 2018,
including 1,610 2,057 32 146 93 74 4,012
Financing activities
(cash flow)
Proceeds/repayment of loar
and borrowings 1,022 (933) - 246 87 - 422
Interest paid (189) (78) 4) - - - 271)
Repayment of other financie
liabilities - - (6) - - (57) (63)
Repurchase of bonds (40) - - - - - (40)
Operating and investing
activities (nonrcash flow)
Foreign exchanggain)/loss 310 16 - 15 (1) - 340
Offset of other financial
liabilities - - - (126) (164) - (290)
Finance expenses 198 58 4 4 1 15 280
Finance income - - - - - 1 1
Reclassification 341 (342) 1 (146) 146 — —
As of December 31, 2018 3,252 778 27 139 162 33 4,391
Financing activities
(cash flow)
Proceeds/repayment of loar
and borrowings (247 (288 - 185 - - (250)
Interest paid (221) (29) (12) (8) - - (260)
Repayment of other financie
liabilities - - (25) - 3) (29) (57)
Operating and investing
activities (nonrcash flow)
Foreign exchang@ain)/loss (204 6 5) (29) (2) - 233)
Offset of other financial
liabilities - - - (160 (12) - 172)
Acquisition of subsidiaries n
of cash - 2 - - - - 2
Effect of initial application of
IFRS 16 Leaseas of
January 1, 2019 - - 103 - - - 103
Increase in lease liabilities - - 46 - - - 46
Finance expenses 222 16 12 11 - - 261
Finance income - - - - - 3 3
Reclassification (113 113 — (22 22 - —
As of December 31, 2019 2,789 608 146 116 168 1 3,828
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31. Other current tax liabilities

Other shorterm tax liabilities comprise the following:

As of December 31,

2019 2018
Mineral extraction tax 181 163
VAT 123 121
Excise duties 30 27
Property tax 9 10
Tax on additional income from production of hydrocarbons 31 -
Personal income tax 3 3
Other 2 3
Total other tax liabilities 379 327
32. Provisions
Asset Environmental Legal and tax
retirement remediation claimsand
obligations provision  other provisions Total
As of January 1,2018, including 218 41 15 274
Non-current 213 27 5 245
Current 5 14 10 29
Provisions charged during the year (Note 40) 9 7 10 26
Increase/(dcrease) in the liability resulting fro
Changes in estimates (24) - 9 (15)
Change in the discount rate (12) - - (12)
Foreign exchange differences 8 - 2 10
Unwinding of discount 17 2 - 19
Utilization 3) (6) (6) (15)
As of December 312018, induding 213 44 30 287
Non-current 207 29 8 244
Current 6 15 22 43
Provisions charged during the year (Note 40) 14 8 7 29
Increase/(decrease) in the liability resulting fr
Changes in estimates (1) (2) 13 10
Changes in the discount rate 81 1 - 82
Foreign exchange differences (6) - ()] (8)
Unwinding of discount 17 2 19
Utilization 3) (6) (12 (21
As of December 312019, including 315 47 36 398
Non-current 309 31 3 343
Current 6 16 33 55

Asset retirement (decommissioning) obligaticasd Environmental remediation provision represent an
estimate of the costs of liquidating oil and gas assets, the reclamation of sand pits, slurry ponds, and disturb
lands, and the dismantling of pipelines and power transmission lines. The budget for payments under ass
retirement obligations is prepared on an annual basis. Depending on the current economic environment tf
Companys actual expenditures may vary from the budgeted amounts.
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33. Prepayment on longterm oil and petroleum products supply agreements

During 20132014 the Company entered into a humber of-temgn crude oil and petroleum products supply
contracts which require the buyer to makeepayment. The total minimum delivery voluomeler those contracts

at inceptionapproximatd 400million tonnes. The crude oil and petroleum product prices are based on current
market prices. The prepaynsaresettled through physical deliveries of crude oil and petroleum products.

Deliveries of oil and petroleum products that reduce the prepayment amounts commenced in 2015
The Company considers these contracts to be regedgrcontracts.

2019 2018

As of January 1 1,426 1,586
Received - 123
Settled (344) (283)
Total prepayment on longterm oil and petroleum products supply

agreements 1,082 1,426
Less currem portion (332) (354)
Long-term prepayment as of December 31 750 1,072

The offset amounts under these contracts were BWBbillion and RUB 28illion (US$ 7.08billion and
US$7.03 billion at the CBR official exchange rate at the prepayment dates, the prepayments are not revalue
at each balance sheet date) for 2019 and 2018, respectively

34. Other non-current liabilities

Other noneurrent liabilities comprise the following:

As of December 31,

2019 2018
Joint project liabilities 1 1
Liabilities for investing activities 3 2
Liabilities for joint operation contracts in Germany 25 21
Operating liabilities of subsidiary banks 38 17
Other 6 5
Total other non-current liabilities 73 46

35. Pension benefit obligations
Defined contribution plans

The Company makes payments to the State Pension Fund of the Russian Federation. These payments
calculated by the employer as a percentage of salary expense and are expensed as accrued.

The Company also maintains a defined contribution corporate pension plan to finance stetenpensions
of its employees.

Pension contributions recognized in the consolidated statement of plofisavere as follows:

2019 2018
State Pension Fund 63 52
JSC NPF Evolution 12 12
Total pension contributions 75 64
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36. Shareholders equity
Common shares
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018

Authorized common shares

quantity, millions 10,598
amount, billions of RUB 0.6
Issued and fully paid shares

quantity, millions 10,598
amount, billions of RUB 0.6
Nominal value of 1 common share, RUB 0.01

On June 21, 201®e Annual General Shareholdekeeting approved dividends on the Compgamommon
shares for 2017 in the amount of RUB 6.65 per share, which comprised RUB 70.5 billion.

On September 28, 281the Extraordinary ShareholdérdMeeting approved interim dividends on the
Companys common shares for the first half of 20h8the amount ofl4.58 per share, which comprised
RUB 154.5 billion.

On June 4, 2019 the Annual General Sharehdldéesting approvedividends on the Compaig/common
shares for 2018 in the amount of RUB 11.33 per share, which comprised RUB 120.1 billion.

On September 30, 2019 the Extraordinary Shareholddeeting approved interim dividends on the
Companys common shares for thedi half of 2019 in the amount of RUB 15.34 per share, which comprised
RUB 162.6 billion.

The dividends are distributed from the net profit of PR&Gneft Oil Company calculated in compliance with
the current legislation of the Russian Federation.

37. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined as follows:

X  The fair value of financial assets and liabilities quoted on active liquid markets is determined in
accordance with market prices;

X  The fair vale of other financial assets and liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted models and is based on discounted cash flow analysis that relies on prices used for existit
transactions in the current market;

X The fair value of derivative riancial instruments is based on market quotes. In illiquid and highly
volatile markets fair value is determined on the basis of valuation models that rely on assumptions
confirmed by observable market prices or rates as of the reporting date.
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37. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Assets and liabilities of the Company that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis in accordance wi
the fair value hierarchy are presented in the table below.

Fair value measurement
as of DecembeB1, 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Current assets
Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income 64 334 12 410
Financial assets at fair value recognized in

profit or loss - 2 - 2
Derivative financial instruments - 2 - 2
Non-current assets
Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income - 21 - 21
Financial assets at fair value recognized in

profit or loss — 12 - 122
Total assets measured at fair value 64 481 12 557
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments — D - (D
Total liabilities measured at fair value — (D - (1)

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets at fa
value through profit or loss and derivative finanaiastruments included in Level 2 is measured at the present
value of future estimated cash flows, using inputs such as market interest rates and market quotes of forwa
exchange rates.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents and derivativeifhamstruments recognized in these
consolidated financial statements equals their fair value. The carrying value of accounts receivable an
accounts payable, loans issued, other financial assets and other financial liabilities recognized in thes
consoldated financial statements approximates their fair value.

Carrying value Fair value (Level 2)

As of December 31, As of December 31,

2019 2018 2019 2018
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Loans and borrowings i a variable interés

rate (2,230 (2,669) (2,148 (2,614)

Loans and borrowings with a fixed interest ra (1,167 (1,361) (2,270 (1,316)
Lease liabilities (146) (27) (143 (30)

38. Related party transactions

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, parties are considered to be related if one party |
the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
or operational decisions. Related parties comprise major sharehaldempanies under their control
(including enterprises directly or indirectly controlled by the Russian Government), associates and joint
ventures, key management and pension funds (Note 35).

74



Rosneft Oil Company

Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

38. Related party transactions(continued)

Related parties nyaenter into transactions which unrelated parties might not, and transactions between relatec
parties may not be effected on the same terms as transactions between unrelated parties.

The disclosure of related party transactions is presented on an agdpagjatfor shareholders and companies
controlled by shareholders, joint ventures and associates, arsatempension funds. In addition, there may

be additional disclosures of certain significant transactions (balances and turnovers) with certain relatel
parties.

In the course of its ordinary business, the Company enters into transactions with other companies controlle
by the Russian Government. In the Russian Federation, electricity and transport tariffs are regulated by tr
Federal Antimonopoly Sere, an authorized governmental agency of the Russian Federation. Bank loans are
recorded based on market interest rates. Taxes are accrued and paid in accordance with applicalblegax law.
Company sells crude oil and petroleum products to and purchasbs @l and petroleum products from
related parties in the ordinary course of business at prices close to average market prices.

Transactions with shareholders and companies controlled by shareholders

Revenues and income

2019 2018
Qil, gas, petroleurproducts and petrochemicals sales 732 888
Support services and other revenues 2 9
Finance income 21 19
Other income 4 —

759 916

Costs and expenses

2019 2018
Production and operating expenses 17 8
Cost of purchased oil, gas, petroleum productsrafining costs 58 97
Transportation costs and other commercial expenses 481 500
Other expenses 9 21
Financial expenses 52 26

617 652

Other operations

2019 2018
Acquisition of subsidiaries and interest in associates (1) 3)
Loans received 140 266
Loans repaid (412) (112)
Loans and borrowings issued (42) (9)
Repayment of loans and borrowings issued 37 2
Deposits placed (33) (69)
Deposits repaid 96 463

75



Rosneft Oil Company

Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

38. Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with shareholders and compamis controlled by shareholders (continued)

Settlement balances

As of December 31,

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 88 498
Accounts receivable 100 77
Prepayments and other current assets 44 65
Other financial assets 225 325
457 965
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 279 a7
Loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities 443 904
722 951
Transactions with joint ventures
Revenues and income
2019 2018
Qil, gas, petroleum products and petrochemicalssale 18 13
Support services and other revenues 4 3
Finance income 21 5
Other income 12 -
55 21
Costs and expenses
2019 2018
Production and operating expenses 5 3
Cost of purchased oil, gas, petroleum products and refining costs 312 297
Transportabn costs and other commercial expenses 8 12
Other expenses - 3
Finance expenses 1 1
326 316
Other operations
2019 2018
Loans received 54 -
Loans repaid (25) -
Loans and borrowing issued (9) (6)
Repayment of loans and borrowings issued 5 29

76



Rosneft Oil Company

Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

38. Related party transactions (continued)
Transactions with joint ventures (continued)

Settlement balances

Assets

Accounts receivable

Prepayments and other current assets
Other financial assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities

Transactions with associates

Revenues and income

Qil, gas, petroleum products and petrochemicakssal
Support services and other revenues
Finance income

Costs and expenses

Production and operating expenses

Cost of purchased oil, gas, petroleum products and refining costs

Transportation costs ardher commercial expenses
Other expenses
Finance expenses

Other operations

Loans received

Loans repaid

Loans and borrowing issued

Repayment of loans and borrowings issued

77

As of December 31,

2019 2018

9 3

1 —

21 17

31 20

244 141

23 30

267 171
2019 2018

354 364

4 1

3 4

361 369
2019 2018

22 13

108 42

2 1

3 17

7 2

142 75
2019 2018

122 -

(168) -

(43) (31)

41 17
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38. Related party transactions (continued)
Transactions with associategcontinued)

Settlement balances

Assets

Accounts receivable

Prepayments and other current assets
Other financial assets

Liabi lities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities

Transactions with non-state pension funds

Costs and expenses

Other expenses

Loans received
Loans repaid

Settlement balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities

Compensation to key managenmd personnel

As of December 31,

2019 2018
91 26
- 13
11 57
102 96
35 16
232 239
267 255
2019 2018
12 12

As of December 31,

2019 2018
- 7
- (4)
As of December 31,
2019 2018
2 4
3
2 7

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements key management personnel include members of:
Management Board of PJSC Rosneft Oil Company and members of the Board of Directors.

Shortterm gross benefits of the Management Boareimbers, taking into account personnel rotation,
including payrol] bonusescompensation paymenémdpersonal income tatotaled RUB3,570million and

RUB 3,854 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively (social security fund contributions, which are not
Management Board membeiscome, totaled RUB13 million and RUB567 million, respectively). Short

term gross benefits for 201&e disclosed in accordance with the Russian securities law on information

disclosure.
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38. Related party transactions (continwed)
Compensation to key management personnel (continued)

On June 42019, the Annual General Shareholders Meeting approved remuneration to the following
memberofthe Companys Board of Directors for the period of their service in the following amounts:
Mr. Gerhard Schréder US$ 600,000 (RUB 39.million at the CBR official exchange rate dane 4, 2019);

Mr. Faisal Alsuwaidi -US$ 530,000 (RUB 34.7 million at the CBR official exchange ratéume 4, 2019);

Mr. Matthias Warnig -JS$ 580,000 (RUB 3& miillion at the CBR official exchange rate on June 4, 2019);
Mr. Oleg Viyugin —US$ 560,000 (RUB 36. million at the CBR official exchange rate on June 4, 2019);
Mr. Ivan Glasenberg- US$ 530,000 (RUB 34.7 million at the CBR official exchange ratelame 4,2019);

Mr. Rudloff HansJoerg— US$ 580,000 (RUB 38.million at the CBR official exchange rate dane 4, 2019).
Remuneration does not include compensation of travel expenses. No remuneration was paid to members of t
Board of Directors who are statdiofls (Andrey BelousowandAlexander Novakor to Mr.lgor Sechin, the
Chairman of the Mnagement Board, for their Board of Directors service.

On June 21, 2018, the Annual General Shareholders Meeting approved remuneration to the following
memberof the Companys Board of Directors for the period of their service in the following amounts:
Mr. Gerhard SchroderUS$ 600,000 (RUB 38.2 million at the CBR official exchange rate on June 21, 2018);
Mr. Faisal Alsuwaidi — US$ 530,000 (RUB 33.7 million at the CBR official exchange rate on June 21, 2018);
Mr. Matthias Warnig- US$ 580,000 (RUB 36.9 million at the CBR official exchange rate on June 21, 2018);
Mr. Oleg Viyugin —US$ 565,000 (RUB 35.9 million at the CBR official exchange rate on June 21, 2018);
Mr. Ivan Glasenberg US$ 530,000 (RUB 33.7 million at the CBR official exchange rate on2Ln2018);

Mr. Donald Humphreys £JS$ 580,000 (RUB 36.9 million at the CBR official exchange rate on June 21,
2018). Remuneration does not include compensation of travel expenses. No remuneration was paid to memb
of the Board of Directors who are statdficials (Andrey Belousovand Alexander Novak or to

Mr. Igor Sechin, the Chairman of the Management Board, for their Board of Directors service.
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39. Key subsidiaries

2019 2018
Preferred Preferred
and and
common  Voting common  Voting
Country of shares shares shares shares
Name incorporation Core activity % % % %
Exploration and production
JSC Orenburgneft Russia Oil and gas developmer
and production 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
JSC Samotlorneftegaz Russia Oil and gas developmer
and production 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
JSC Vankorneft Russia Oil and gas developmer
and prodation 50.10 50.10 50.10 50.10
LLC RN-Yuganskneftegaz Russia Oil and gas production
operator services 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
PJSC Bashneft Oil Company Russia Oil and gas developmer
and production 60.33 70.93 60.33 70.93
Refining, marketing and distribution
JSC RORC Russia Petroleum refining 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
JSC Angarsk Petrochemical Compal Russia Petroleum refining 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
JSC Novokuybyshev Refinery Russia Petroleum refining 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
LLC RN-Komsomolsky Refinery Russia Petroleum refining 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
JSC Syzran Refinery Russia Petroleum refining 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
JSC Achinsk Refinery Russia Petroleum refining 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
JSC Kuybyshev Refinery Russa Petroleum refining 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
LLC RN-Tuapse Refinery Russia Petroleum refining 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
LLC RN-Bunker Russia  Marketing and distributio 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
LLC RN-Aero Russia  Marketing and distributio  100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
LLC RN-Commerce Russia  Marketing and distributio 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
LLC RN-Trade Russia Investing activity 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Rosneft Trading S.A. Switzerland Marketing and distributio 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Rosneft Deutschland GmbH Germany Marketing and distributio  100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Other
JSC RN Holding Russia Holding company 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
JSC Russian Regional Development
Bank (VBRR) Russia Banking 98.34 98.34 98.34 98.34
LLC RN-GAZ Russia Holding company 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Rosneft Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore Holding company 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
LLC RN-Foreign Projects Russia Holding company 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Rosneft Holdings LTD S.A. Luxemburg Holding company 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
TOC Investments Corporation Limite ~ Cyprus Other services 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

40. Contingencies

Russian business environment

Russia continues economic reforms and the development of its tegadnd regulatory frameworks as
required by a market economy. The future stability of the Russian economy is largely dependent upon thes
reforms and developments and the effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken

the goverment.

The Russian economy has been negatively impacted by sanctions imposed on Russia by a number of countri
Ruble interest rates remained high. The combination of the above has resulted in reduced access to capita
higher cost of capital and uncarity regarding economic growth, which could negatively affect the
Companys future financial position, results of operations and business prospects. Management is taking
appropriate measures to support the sustainability of the Cohsgaunsiness in the current circumstances.
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40. Contingencies (continued)
Russian business environment (continued)

The Company also has investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and advances issuec
contractors operating in foreign jurisdictions. Besides commercial risks being a part of any investment
operation, assets in a number of regions of the Compaiayivities also bear political, economic and tax risks
which are analyzed by the Cpany on a regular basis.

The Company continuously monitors projects in Venezuela implemented with its participation. Commercial
relations with the Venezuelan state oil company PDVSA are carried out on the basis of existing contracts an
in accordance withpplicable legislation, including international law.

Guarantees and indemnities issued

An unconditional unlimited guarantee issued in 2013 in favor of the Government and municipal authorities of
Norway is effective in respect of the Compangperationsn the Norwegian continental shelf. That guarantee
fully covers all potential ongoing environmental liabilities of RN Nordic Oil AS. A parent company guarantee
is required by Norwegian legislation and is an essential condition for licensing the opeshiMidNordic

Oil AS on the Norwegian continental shelf jointly with Equinor (until July 26 83atoil ASA).

The Companys agreements with Eni S.p.A and Equinor (until July 208atoil ASA) under the Russian
Federation shelf exploration program contanutual guarantees provided in 2013 that are unconditional,
unlimited and open-ended.

In 2015 in accordance with the cooperation agreement on difficult to extract oil reserves with GEqmtihor
July 2018- Statoil ASA), both parties issued parent guarantees on the dischargingrafttiz liabilities of
their related parties. These guarantees are unconditional, unlimited anenoleeh

In 2018, as part of the operating activities of Rosneft, an unconditional irrevocable guarantees were issued |
favor of the Government of the Republic of Mozambique providing the coverage of potential liabilities for
geological exploration on the Mozambique continental shelf (4 years).

Legal claims

Rosneft and its subsidiaries are involved in litigations which arise from time to time in the course of their
business activities. Management believes that the ultimate results of these litigations will not materially affec
the performance or financial ptisn of the CompanyReliably estimated probable obligatiomgere
recognized within provisions in the Consolidated financial statements of the Company (Note 32).

Taxation

Legislation and regulations regarding taxation in Russia continue to evolve. Various legislative acts anc
regulations are not always clearly written, and their interpretation is subject to the opinions of the taxpayers
and local, regional, and national tax authorities, and the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation
Instances oinconsistent opinions are not unusual.

In Russia, tax returns remain open and subject to inspection for a period of up to three years. The fact that
year has been reviewed does not close that year, or any tax return applicable to that year, from further revie
during the period of three calendar years preceding the year when the inspection started.

In accordance with Russian tax legislation, if an understatement of a tax liability is detected as a result of a
inspection, penalties and fines to be paight be material in respect of the tax liability misstatement.
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40. Contingencies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

During thereporting period, the tax authorities continued their inspections of some of Ragdrsftiaries for
20152018. The Compang management does not expect the outcome of the inspections to have a materia
impact on the Compahy consolidated balance sheet or results of operations.

As part of the new regime for fiscal control over the pricing of related party transactions, the Company anc
the Federal Tax Service signed a number of pricing agreement2@dshto 2019 with respect to the taxation
of oil sales and refining transactions in Russia.

The Company believes that transfer pricing risks in relation to intragroup transactions duringltee
months ended December,2D19 and earlier will not have a material effect on its financial position or results
of operations.

The Company follows the rules of tax legislation onoffshorization, including income tax rules for
controlled foreign companies to calculate its current and deferred income tax estimates.

Overall, management believes that the Camyphas paid and accrued all taxes that are applicable. For taxes
where uncertainty exists, the Company has accrued tax liabilities based on manageeséestimate of the
probable outflow of resources that will be required to settle these liabilities.

Capital commitments

The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in ongoing capital projects for the exploration and developme
of production facilities and the modernization of refineries and the distribution network. The budgets for these
projects a@ generally set on an annual basis.

The total amount of contracted but not yet delivered goods and services related to the construction ar
acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to RUBbB&n and RUB 758 billion as of
December 31, 2018nd2018, respectively.

Commitments of the Company that it has relating to its joint ventures amount up to RUB 15 billion as of
December 31, 2019.

Environmental liabilities

The Company periodically evaluates its environmental liabilities pursuant to environmental regulations. Suct
liabilities are recognized in the consolidated financial statements as and when identified. Potential liabilities
that could arise as a result of changes in existing regulations or the settlement of civil litigation, or as a resu
of changes in environmental standards, cannot be reliably estimated but may be material. With the existin
system of control, management believes that there are no material liabilities for environmental damage othe
than those recorded in these consolidated financial statements.

Risks and opportunities associated with climate change

Within the framework of its corporate risk management system, the Company on an annual basis identifie
and evaluates risks and opportunities related to climate el@pgct onits business activities

In the process dhvestment decision makinthe risks associated with health, safety and environment (HSE),
ecology, and climate change are analyzed. For large prdfezasialysis othealignmentwith the Compans
strategic goals, environmental standards and requirements of the Russian and international legislation
performed, as well ahe analysis and assessment of external risks related to the impact on the environment
(changes in legislation, changes in technologies, market risks, reputation risks, etc.).
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40. Contingencies (continued)
Risks and opportunities associated with climate changgontinued)

In addition, the risks and opportunities associated with climate change and the transiticndhlmwenergy

are consideredin the Companys strategic management and business planning processes (especially for
projects located in climatgensitive regions: marine projects, Arctic projects, eis.jvell as for of the global
energy developmesiscenariglanning

Other matters

Due to the pollution of oil in the trunk pipeline “Druzhba” in April 2019 a number of claims from the customers
were submitted to PJSC “Rosneft Oil Company” dur@l9, stating that the supplied oil contains
substantially exceeded maximum permitted levels of organochlorine compounds (compared to level:
determined by the relevant technical regulations and standards). At the same timéRdaie@ Oil
Company” delivered oil to the system of oil trunk pipelines of PJSC “Transnettdrimpliance with the
requirements of technical regulations and standards.

Also, the Company received claims from the customers who were not delivered the contracted amounts of a
due to the oil pumping interruption in the trunk oil pipeline “Druzhbatlilitegy from the contamination.

Calculation of losses incurred by PJSC “Rosneft Oil Company” can be finalized after the completion of the
comprehensive assessment of the impact of the incident on the Compatiyities (including the forced
reduction inoil production due to the reduced oil intake into the system of PJSC “Transneft”), obtaining a
complete and legally supported claims from all counterparties and tiseibngission to PJSOransneft” for
compensation.

41. Supplementary oil and gas discloswe (unaudited)

IFRS do not require information on oil and gas reserves to be disclosed. While this information has beel
developed with reasonable care and is disclosed in good faith, it is emphasized that the data represer
managemens best estimates. Accordingly, this information may not necessarily represent the current financial
condition of the Company and its future financial results.

The Companys activities are conducted primarily in Russia, which is considered as a single geographic area
Capitalized costs relating to oil and gas production are presented below

Consolidated subsidiaries and joint operations

As of December 31;

2019 2018
Oil and gas properties related to proved reserves 10,199 9,377
Oil and gas properties related to unproveserves 420 380
Total capitalized costs 10619 9,757
Accumuhted depreciation, depletion and impairment losses (3,712 (3,183)
Net capitalized costs 6,907 6,574
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41. Supplementary oil and gas disclosure (unauditedcontinued)

Costs incurred in oil and gas property acquisition, exploration and development activities are presented
below

Consolidated subsidiaries and joint operations

For the years ended December 31.:

2019 2018
Acquisition of properties- proved oil and gas reserves - 2
Acquisition of properties- unproved oil and gas reserves 19 12
Exploration costs 51 40
Development costs 876 951
Total costs incurred 946 1,005

The results of operations relating to oil and gas production are presented below
Consolidated subsidiaries and jditoperations

For the years ended Decemi3dr

2019 2018
Revenue 4,717 4,603
Production costs (excluding production taxes) (425) (407)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (97) (99)
Exploration expense (18) (16)
Depreciation, depletion andnartization, impairment and liquidation losse (575) (536)
Taxes other than income tax (2,372) (2,341)
Income tax (249 (246)
Results of operations relating to oil and gas production 981 958

Reserve guantity information

Since 2014 the Company hasdliised its reserves calculated in accordance with the Petroleum Resources
Management System (PRMS). For the purpose of the evaluation of reserves as of DateRtli€and

2018, the Company used oil and gas reserve information prepared by DeGolyer eNduiytdaon,
independent reservoir engineers. Proved reserves are those estimated quantities of petroleum which, throu
the analysis of geoscience and engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be commerci
recoverable from a givenate forward from known reservoirs and under defined economic conditions and
operating methods. In certain cases, the recovery of such reserves may require considerable investments
wells and related equipment. Proved reserves also include additional oil and gas reserves that will be extract
after the expiry date of license agreements or may be discovered as a result of secondary and tertiary extract
which have been successfully tested and checked for commercial benefit. Proved developed regerses are
guantities of crude oil and gas expected to be recovered from existing wells using existing equipment an
operating methods.

Proved undeveloped oil and gas reserves are reserves that are expected to be recovered from new wells
undrilled acreagegr from existing wells where a relatively major expenditure is required for recompletion.
Reserves on undrilled acreage are limited to those drilling units offsetting productive units that are reasonabl
certain of production when drilled. Due to inheramustry uncertainties and the limited nature of deposit
data, estimates of reserves are subject to change as additional information becomes available.
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41. Supplementary oil and gas disclosure (unauditedcontinued)
Reserve guantity information (continued)

The Company management included in proved reserves those reserves which the Company intends to extr
after the expiry of the current licenses. The licenses for the development and production of hydrocarbon
currently held by the Company generally expire betwee20 20d 2202, and the licenses for the most
important deposits expire between 2038 and 2kbAccordance with the effective version of the law of the
Russian Federation (GBubsurface Resourcéthe “Law”), licenses are currently granted @ production

period determined on the basis of technological and economic criteria applied to the development of th
mineral deposit which guarantee the rational use of subsurface resources and necessary environmen
protection.In accordance with thedw and upon the gradual expiration of old licenses issued under the
previous version of the Law, the Company extends its hydrocarbon production licenses for the whole
productive life of the fields. Extension of the licenses depends on compliance wighntiseset forth in the
existing license agreements. As of the date of these consolidated financial statements, the Company is gener:
in compliance with all the terms of the license agreements and intends to continue complying with such term
in the futue.

The Compan)s estimates of net proved liquid hydrocarbons and sales gas reserves and changes thereto for t
years ended December 31, 2@t@i2018are shown in the table below and expressed in million barrels of oil
equivalent (liquid hydrocarbons mhoction data was recalculated from tonnes to barrels using field specific
coefficients; sales gas production data was recalculated from cubic meters to barrels of oil equivalent (“boe”
using an average ratio).

Consolidated subsidiaries and joint operatis

2019 2018

million boe million boe
Beginning of year 44,358 43,781
Revisions of previous estimates 847 1,183
Extensions and discoveries 1,546 1,289
Improved recovery 1 1
Purchase of new reserves 3 -
Production (1,910) (1,896)
End of year 44,845 44,358
Proved developed reserves 21,324 20,838
Minority interest in total proved reserves 3,790 3,446
Minority interest in proved developed reserves 1,705 1,605

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows and changes thareglating to proved oil
and gas reserves

The standardized measure of future net cash flows related to the above oil and gasdissetrged at0%

p.a. Estimated future cash inflows from oil, condensate and gas production are computed by applying the
projected prices the company uses in its {t@rgn forecasts to yeand quantities of estimated net proved
reserves. Future development and production costs are those estimated future expenditures necessary
develop and produce estimated proved reseag of yeaend based on current expenses and costs and
forecasts. In certain cases, future values, either higher or lower than current values, were used as a result
anticipated changes in operating conditions.

Estimated future income taxes are chlted by applying appropriate yeand statutory tax rates. These rates
reflect allowable deductions and tax credits and are applied to estimate futuretagtqaEh flows, net of the
tax bases of related assets.
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